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PART |
Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwémdking statements within the meaning of the Pav@ecurities Litigation Reform Act
1995. Words such as "plan,” "expect,” "aim," "bedi¢ "project,” "intend,” "estimate,” "will," "shdd," "could,” and other terms of simi
meaning typically identify forward-looking statentenThe forwardeoking statements in this report include, withbutitation: our prospect
resources or capabilities; current or future finahtrends; future operating results; future plémsintroduction of new products; anticipa
demand for our new and existing products; mainteaanf appropriate inventory levels; growth in rewes and profits; leverage of opera
expenses; future revenues from our licensing inga results of increased media investment inDirect segment; continued improvemer
operating margins; expectations for increased Resemd Development expenses; the amount expeazteel $pent on software and equipr
in 2014; fluctuations in Net Sales due to seastynand our ability to continue to fund our opengtiand capital needs for the following twelve
month period. Forwartboking statements also include any statementdegklto our expectations regarding future business famancia
performance or conditions, anticipated sales graaettoss markets, distribution channels and prodatetgories, expenses and gross mai
profits or losses, losses from discontinued openatisettlements of warranty obligations, the grdied outcome of litigation to which we ai
party, new product introductions, financing and kiog capital requirements and resources. Theseai@Heoking statements, and others
make from time-tdime, are subject to a number of risks and unadits. Many factors could cause actual resultsifferdmaterially fromn
those projected in forwarndoking statements, including the risks describeéart I, Iltem 1A of this report. We do not undketany duty t
update forward-looking statements after the datg Hre made or conform them to actual results chémges in circumstances or expectation:

Iltem 1. Business
OVERVIEW

Founded in 1986, Nautilus is a consumer fitnesslyets company headquartered in Vancouver, Washingital incorporated in the State
Washington in January 1993. We are committed teighag innovative, quality solutions to help peojplehieve a fit and healthy lifestyle. (
principal business activities include designingyeleping, sourcing and marketing higoality cardio and strength fitness products ahatee
accessories for consumer use, primarily in the ddhBtates and Canada. Our products are sold uoader af the mostecognized brand narr
in the fitness industry: Nautillfs Bowflex®, Schwinn®, Schwinn Fitness™ and Universal

We market our products through two distinct digttibn channels, Direct and Retail, which we constdebe separate business segments
Direct business offers products directly to consumersutiinctelevision advertising, catalogs and the Irger@urRetail business offers o
products through a network of independent retaihpanies with stores and websites located in theedrstates and internationally. We
derive a portion of our revenue from the licensdfigur brands and intellectual property.

Beginning in 2009, we began the divestiture of @ammercial business, which focused on the sal®wingercial fithess equipment into gy!
health clubs, and fithess centers. While that geaeas largely completed in 2011, several Eurogeasidiaries are in the liquidation proc
and are awaiting formal government approval to detepthe liquidation. Results of operations frora @ommercial business are presente
Discontinued Operations for all periods. There wagevenue related to the Commercial businesshioiyears ended December 31, 201
2012.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

We are focused on developing and marketing constitness equipment and related products to helpleeenjoy healthier lives. Our produ
are targeted to meet the needs of a broad rangersumers, including fitness enthusiasts and iddals who are seeking the benefit
regular exercise. We have diversified our busings®xpanding our portfolio of highuality fithness equipment into multiple productel
utilizing our well-recognized brand names. Our hass strategy focuses exclusively on consumer ptedmarkets and distribution channels.

Our strategies incorporate the individual charasties of our Direct and Retail businesses. Oueglibusiness focuses on: (i) the developi
of, or acquisition of rights to, unique product$); the application of creative, cosffective ways to communicate the benefits of thisie; an
(iii) making various payment options available 1r customers. We are particularly attentive to Etiteusiness metrics that provide feedt
regarding the effectiveness of our media markgtimgyrams and attractiveness of third-party consudmancing programs.




In our Retail business, we strive to develop loaign relationships with key retailers of sportdfitress equipment. The primary objective
our Retail business are (i) to offer a selectiorpafducts at key price-points; and (i) to utilitee strength of our brands and lostgnding
customer relationships to secure more floor spatteaur Retail customers for our products.

Our long-term strategy involves:
» creatively marketing our equipment, both dingdd consumers and through our Retail customerdevigveraging our welknowr
brand names;
« enhancing our product lines by designing fitheaspgent that meets or exceeds the high expectatibosr customer
« utilizing our strengths in product engineeringeduice product cos
e continuing our investment in research and develapraetivities aimed at acquiring or creating neehtelogies
* increasing our international Retail sales and ithistion; anc
» increasing royalty revenues from the licensinguf lrands and intellectual prope

PRODUCTS

We market quality cardiovascular and strength $ignproducts that cover a broad range of price paintl features. Our products are desi
for home use by individuals with varying exerciseds. From the person who works out occasionaltidcserious athlete, we have prod
that will help them achieve their fitness objective

» Nautilus ®is our corporate umbrella brand and is also usetiffierentiate certain specialized cardio, ellipt&zand bike produc

« OurBowflex ®brand represents a highiggarded line of fitness equipment comprised ohlmardio and strength products, incluc
the TreadClimbef and MAX Trainer™ specialized cardio machines, treadmills, PowerRahd Revolution® home gyms, ar
SelectTect? dumbbells.

»  OurSchwinn®brand is known for its popular line of exercisedsikincluding the Airdyn&, and ellipticals

« OurUniversal ® brand, one of the oldest and most recognized namibe fitness industry, currently offers a linekefttlebell weight
and weight benches.

While we offer our full product assortment to ourdat customers through our Internet websites andctcatalogs, we generally differentiate
product models offered in our Direct and Retaiesathannels. Currently, our Bowfl&X readClimbef® and MAX Trainer™ product lines au
offered for sale primarily through our Direct satdmnnel.

Approximately 69%of our revenue in 2013 was derived from sales ofsumer cardio products. While we continue to beadér in th
consumer strength product category, we believentineh larger market for cardio products offers wsatgr opportunity for growth.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

We conduct our business in two segments, DirectRetail. For further information regarding our segits and geographic information,
Note 14, Segment and Geographic Information, toconsolidated financial statements in Part Il, [@wf this report

SALES AND MARKETING

Direct

In our Direct business, we market and sell our pet&l principally Bowflex® cardio and strength products, directly to consumaitsile we are
and plan to continue to be, a large direct marketestrength products in the United States, ouredising emphasis has shifted toward ce
products, especially the BowfléxTreadClimber®, as cardio products represent the largest compafahe fithess equipment market ar
growing part of our business. Sales of cardio petaluepresented 84% of our Direct channel revemu@813, compared to 81% 2012 an
71% in 2011.

Our marketing efforts are based on an integratesbauation of media and direct consumer contacaddition to television advertising, wh
ranges in length from 30 seconds to as long a® thmimutes, we utilize Internet advertising, produ&bsites, inquiryesponse mailing
catalogs and inbound/outbound call centers. Margedind media effectiveness is measured continudasged on sales inquiries gener:
cost-pertead, conversion rates, return on investment ahdrgierformance metrics and we strive to optimiee gfficiency of our marketi
and media expenditures based on this data. Almbsf aur Direct customer orders are received &ittie our Internet websites or throt
company-owned and third-party call centers.




In order to facilitate consumer purchases, we panvith several third party credit providers. Cteafiproval rates are an important variab
the number of Direct products we sell in a givenigte Combined consumer credit approvals by oumary and secondary U.S. thipduty
financing providers increased to 36% in 2013 fr&2#63n 2012 and 25% in 2011.

Retail

In our Retail business, we market and sell a cohgmsive line of consumer fitness equipment undeNahutilus®, Schwinn®, Universal® anc
Bowflex ®brands. Our products are marketed through a netoforitail companies, consisting of sporting gostises, Internet retailers, large-
format and warehouse stores, and, to a lessertestaaller specialty retailers and independent Hialers.

We offer programs that provide price discountsuo Retail customers for ordering contairsé&zed shipments or placing orders early enou
the season to allow for more efficient manufaciyifry our Asian suppliers. These programs are dedigm reduce our shipping and hand
costs, with much of the savings being passed ooutocustomers. In addition, we often offer othepely of sales incentives to our Re
customers, including volume discounts and variaum$ of rebates or allowances, which generallyirtended to increase product expo:
and availability for consumers, reduce transpartatiosts, and encourage marketing and promotiauiobrands or specific products.

PRODUCT DESIGN AND INNOVATION

Innovation is a vital part of our business, and eemtinue to expand and diversify our product offgs by leveraging our research
development capabilities. We constantly searcmé&w technologies and innovations that will helpyusw our business, either through hic
sales or increased production efficiencies. To agdish this objective, we seek out ideas and caiscbpth within our company and fr
outside inventors.

We rely on financial and engineering models to sises in assessing the potential operational amhceic impacts of adopting ni
technologies and innovations. If we determine th#tirdparty technology or innovation concept meets certachnical and financial criter
we may enter into a licensing arrangement to etittze technology or, in certain circumstances, lmsge the technology for our own use.
product design and engineering teams also investiderable effort to improve product design andiuaAs a consumedriven company, W
invest from time-tadime in qualitative and quantitative consumer resedo help us assess new product concepts, opfieadlires ar
anticipated consumer adoption.

Our research and development expenses were $5i6rmil$4.2 million and $3.2 million in 2013 , 20%khd 2011, respectively, as v
increased our investment in new product developmesdurces and capabilities. We expect our researdidevelopment expenses to incr
in 2014 as we continue to increase our investmenew product development.

SEASONALITY

We expect our sales from fitness equipment prodoctsiry seasonally. Sales are typically strongetite first and fourth quarters, followed
the third quarter, and are generally weakest irstfednd quarter. We believe that, during the spaimdj summer months, consumers tend -
involved in outdoor activities, including outdookegcise, which impacts sales of indoor fithess popgint. This seasonality can hav
significant effect on our inventory levels, workingpital needs and resource utilization.

MERCHANDISE SOURCING

All of our products are produced by thip@rty manufacturers, and, in 2013, all of our mantufring partners were located in Asia. Altho
multiple factories bid on and are able to produ@stof our products, we typically select one fagtr produce any given product. Lead til
for inventory purchases from our Asian suppliersnf order placement to receipt of goods, generalhge from approximately two to th
months, of which transit time represents threésto-weeks. The length of our lead times requiregauplace advance manufacturing or
based on management forecasts of future demanduioproducts. We attempt to compensate for our leuenishment lead times
maintaining adequate levels of inventory at ourekausing facilities.

We monitor our suppliers' ability to meet our protduneeds and we participate in quality assuranteitées to reinforce adherence to
quality standards. Our thindarty manufacturing contracts are generally of ahou shorter duration, or manufactured productssaurced c
the basis of individual purchase orders. Our mastufang relationships are naxclusive, and we are permitted to procure our petslfron
other sources at our discretion. None of our mactufing contracts include production volume orghase commitments on the part of ei
party. Our thirdparty manufacturers are responsible for the sograhraw materials and producing parts and finisipedducts to ot
specifications.




LOGISTICS

Our warehousing and distribution facilities aredtsd in Portland, Oregon and Winnipeg, Manitobaolm Direct business, we strive
maintain inventory levels that will allow us to phour products shortly after receiving a customerter. We use common carriers
substantially all of our merchandise shipments ite® customers.

In our Retail business, we manage our inventorglieto accommodate anticipated seasonal changksyiand. Generally, we maintain hig
inventory levels at the end of the third and fougttarters to satisfy relatively higher consumer dedin the fourth and first quarters of €
year. Many of our Retail customers place orderd imehdvance of peak periods of consumer demanehsure an adequate supply for
anticipated selling season.

In 2013 approximately 40% of our Retail inventogplenishment orders were shipped by our contraciufaaturers in Asia directly to ¢
Retail customer locations, typically in containeads. The use of such direct shipments allows usaintain lower levels of inventory in ¢
warehouses, resulting in lower storage, handlireght, insurance and other costs. We use varioosvercial truck lines for our merchanc
shipments to Retail customers.

COMPETITION

The markets for all of our products are highly cetitive. We believe the principal competitive fast@affecting our business are quality, bi
recognition, innovation and pricing. We believe are well positioned to compete in markets in whigh can take advantage of our str
brand names, and that our focus on innovative ptodiesign, quality, and performance distinguishasppoducts from the competition.

Our products compete directly with those offerecaldigrge number of companies that market consuitmexsé equipment and fithess progre
As the use of Internet websites for product sajesrdnditional retailers has increased, our competihave become increasingly similar ac
our Direct and Retail sales channels.

Our principal competitors include: Fitness Qud€ON Health & Fitness, Johnson Health Tech, BeaotlyBand American Telecast. We ¢
compete with marketers of computer-based physic@lity products, such as the Nintendo Wiand Microsoft Xbox® Kinect®, and weigh
management companies, such as Weight Watcherspéadfich offers alternative solutions for a fitcahealthy lifestyle.

EMPLOYEES

As of February 21, 2014, we had approximately 3tpleyees, substantially all of whom were fiiike. None of our employees are subje:
collective bargaining agreements. We have not éspeed a material interruption of our operations thulabor disputes.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Trademarks, patents and other forms of intelleqiuaperty are vital to the success of our busiaeskare an essential factor in maintaining
competitive position in the health and fitness istdy

Trademarks

We own many trademarks including Nautiftis Bowflex ® , PowerRod® , Revolution®, TreadClimber®, MAX Trainer ™, SelectTecl?,
Trimline ®, Airdyne®, CoreBody Reforme? and UniversaP . Nautilus is the exclusive licensee under the ng&ekwinn® for indoor fitnes
products. We believe that having distinctive tradetm that are readily identifiable by consumeranismportant factor in creating a market
our products, maintaining a strong company idertitgt developing brand loyalty among our custoraraddition, we have granted license
certain thirdparties to use the Nautilus, Schwinn and TreadGinttadenames on commercial fithess products, faclwwe receive royal
income and expanded consumer awareness of oursbrand

Each federally registered trademark is renewaldefinitely if the trademark is still in use at ttime of renewal. We are not aware of
material claims of infringement or other challeng@sur trademark rights in our major markets.




Patents

Building our intellectual property portfolio is amportant factor in maintaining our competitive piimm in the health and fitness equipmr
industry. We have followed a policy of filing apgditions for U.S. and nod-S. patents on utility and design inventions thatdeem valuab
to our business.

We own or license patents covering a variety dfitetogies, some of which are utilized in our valéagtride ellipticals, selectorized dumbb
and recumbent exercise bikes. Nautilus is alsoetkdusive licensee of patents that cover the BowfleRevolution home gyms. Pat
protection for these technologies, which are @diin products sold in both the Direct and Retgjrsents, extends as far as 2020.

Additionally, we maintain a portfolio of patentdated to our BowfleX® TreadClimbef® specialized cardio machines, which are sold prily
in our Direct segment. The portfolio is comprisefd approximately 24 issued U.S. patents coveringouar product features and ot
technologies associated with our TreadClinthgroducts.

A patent covering certain aspects of our TreadCGéinfoproducts expired in 2013. Additional individual gats covering elements of
TreadClimber® products have expiration dates ranging from 201@Q8a7. Expiration or invalidity of patents withiruo TreadClimber®
portfolio could trigger the introduction of similaroducts by our competitors. Although we view eatthe patents within our portfolio as v
valuable, we do not view any single patent ascaiitio our success or ability to differentiate dueadClimber® products from similar produc
that may be introduced by competitors in the futiée regularly monitor commercial activity in ourdustry to guard against poten
infringement. We protect our proprietary rights afigusly and take prompt, reasonable actions togmtewounterfeit or products and ot
infringement on our intellectual property.

BACKLOG

Historically, our backlog has not been a significkttor in our business. Our customer order bagkde of December 31, 2013 and 2@i#
approximately $1.4 million and $0.1 million , resfieely.

SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS
In 2013, 2012 and 2011, Amazon.com accounted fd%111.7% and 11.0%, respectively, of our Net Sale
ENVIRONMENTAL AND OTHER REGULATORY MATTERS

Our operations are subject to various laws andlagigns both domestically and abroad. In the Uni¢ates, federal, state and local regula
impose standards on our workplace and our reldtipn&ith the environment. For example, the U.S. iEonmental Protection Agenc
Occupational Safety and Health Administration atlteo federal agencies have the authority to proatalgegulations that may impact
operations. In particular, we are subject to legish placing restrictions on our generation, eioisstreatment, storage and dispose
materials, substances and wastes. Such legisiatardes: the Toxic Substances Control Act; thedRese Conservation and Recovery Act;
Clean Air Act; the Clean Water Act; the Safe DrimkiWater Act; and the Comprehensive Environmengdfense and the Compensation
Liability Act (also known as Superfund). We arecassibject to the requirements of the Consumer Rtd8afety Commission and the Fed
Trade Commission, in addition to regulations conitgy employee health and safety matters.

Our operations and certain disposed componentsuofaymer Commercial business expose us to claiefaed to environmental matte
Although compliance with federal, state, local amernational environmental legislation has not hatiaterial adverse effect on our finan
condition or results of operations in the pastraéhgan be no assurance that material costs olfitiediwill not be incurred in connection w
such environmental matters in the future.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stockliange and trades under the symbol “NL@Sut principal executive offices are locate
17750 SE 6th Way, Vancouver, Washington 98683,amdelephone number is (360) 83900. The Internet address of our corporate we
is http://www.nautilusinc.com.

We file annual reports, quarterly reports, curmeorts, proxy statements and other informatiom wie Securities and Exchange Commis
(the “SEC")under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aatwndou can inspect and obtain a copy of our repgnoxy statements a
other information filed with the SEC at the officebthe SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Sielet, Washington, D.C. 20549,
official business days during the hours of 10 dm8 p.m. EST. Please call the SEC at 1-800-
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SEC0330 for further information on the Public RefererRoom. The SEC maintains an Internet websitetpt/ftww.sec.gov where you ¢
access copies of most of our SEC filings.

We make our annual reports on Form 10-K, quartexborts on Form 10-Q, current reports on Forig, &nd amendments to those reps
available free of charge on our corporate webkitaddition, our Code of Business Conduct and Ethiorporate governance policies, anc
charters of our Audit Committee, Compensation Cotta®i and Nominating and Corporate Governance Cadeeniéire available on ¢
corporate website. The information presented orcoyporate website is not part of this report.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Nautilus operates in an environment that involvesumber of risks and uncertainties. The risks andettainties described in this Ann
Report on Form 1@ are not the only risks and uncertainties thatfase. Additional risks and uncertainties that pnélgeare not consider:
material or are not known to us, and thereforenatamentioned herein, may impair our business dipera If any of the risks described in 1
Annual Report on Form 10-K actually occur, our bess, operating results and financial positionddel adversely affected.

Our revenues and profitability can fluctuate from period to period and are often difficult to predict due to factors beyond our control.

Our results of operations in any particular penaaly not be indicative of results to be expectefiiiare periods, and have historically been,
are expected to continue to be, subject to perithadtuations arising from a number of factors lirting:
* Introduction and market acceptance of new prodarstssales trends affecting specific existing prosl
e Variations in product selling prices and costs #redmix of products sol
e Size and timing of Retail customer orders, whighturn, often depend upon the success of our cusBrbusinesses
specific products;
e Changes in the market conditions for consumer $gregquipmen
e Changes in macroeconomic fact
e Availability of consumer cred
« Timing and availability of products coming from aaffshore contract manufacturing suppli
» Seasonality of markets, which vary from quattequarter and are influenced by outside factors sagloverall consum
confidence and the availability and cost of telerisadvertising time;
» Effectiveness of our media and advertising progr
» Customer consolidation in our Retail segment, ertthnkruptcy of any of our larger Retail custon
* Restructuring charge
» Goodwill and other intangible asset impairment gkar an
e Legal and contract settlement char

These trends and factors could adversely affecbosiness, operating results, financial positioth @sh flows in any particular period.
Intense competition or loss of one or more of ouarge Retail customers could negatively impact ourades and operating results.

Our products are sold in highly competitive markeith limited barriers to entry. As a result, indection by competitors of lowagriced o
more innovative products could result in a sigaifit decline in our revenues and have a materiabradveffect on our operating rest

financial position and cash flows.

Additionally, we derive a significant portion of otevenue from a small nhumber of Retail customarfss of business from one or more¢
these large customers, if not replaced with nevingss, could negatively affect our operating resaitd cash flow.

A decline in sales of TreadClimber products withouta corresponding increase in sales of other produstwould negatively affect ou
future revenues and operating results.

Sales of cardio products, especially BowfléxreadClimber® products, represent a substantial portion of owedisegment revenu
Introduction by competitors of comparable prodwattower price-points, a maturing product lifecyoteother factors
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could result in a decline in our revenues deriviedhfthese products. A significant decline in odesaf these products would have a mat
adverse effect on our operating results, finammigition and cash flows.

Portions of our operating expenses and costs of gi®sold are relatively fixed, and we may have limid ability to reduce expense
sufficiently in response to any revenue shortfalls.

Many of our operating expenses are relatively fixée may not be able to adjust our operating exgerms other costs sufficiently
adequately respond to any revenue shortfalls. laveeunable to reduce operating expenses or otisés quickly in response to any decline
revenue, it would negatively impact our operatiegults, financial condition and cash flows.

If we are unable to anticipate consumer preferencesr to effectively develop, market and sell futurgproducts, our future revenues ans
operating results could be adversely affected.

Our future success depends on our ability to dffelst develop, market and sell new products thapoad to new and evolving consul
preferences. Accordingly, our revenues and operatsults may be adversely affected if we are wnabldevelop or acquire rights to r
products that satisfy consumer preferences. Intiaddiany new products that we market may not geresufficient revenues to recoup t
acquisition, development, production, marketindjirepand other costs.

Further decline or weaker than expected recovery inconsumer spending likely would negatively affect w product revenues anc
earnings.

Success of each of our products depends subshardialthe amount of discretionary funds availaldeour customers. Global credit ¢
financial markets have experienced extreme disvaptiin the recent past, including severely dimiadshiquidity and credit availabilit
declines in consumer confidence, declines in ecamgnowth, increases in unemployment rates and rtsiogy about economic stability. Thi
can be no assurance that there will not be furdleggrioration in these conditions. Further decbneveaker than expected recovery in get
economic conditions could further depress consuspending, especially spending for discretionaryscomer products such as ours. |
economic conditions could in turn lead to substdrdiecreases in our net sales or have a matenarsal effect on our operating rest
financial position and cash flows.

Our business is affected by seasonality which regslin fluctuations in our operating results.

We experience fluctuations in aggregate sales veldaring the year. Sales are typically strongeshénfirst and fourth quarters, followed
the third quarter, and are generally weakest irstttond quarter. However, the mix of product salag vary considerably from time to time
a result of changes in seasonal and geographicrukfoa particular types of fithess equipment. Iiéidn, our customers may cancel ord
change delivery schedules or change the mix ofymsdordered with minimal notice. As a result, waynmot be able to accurately predict
quarterly sales. Accordingly, our results of operat are likely to fluctuate significantly from ped to period.

Government regulatory actions could disrupt our maketing efforts and product sales.

Various international and U.S. federal, state aoallgovernmental authorities, including the Fed&rade Commission, the Consumer Pro
Safety Commission, the Securities and Exchange Qssion and the Consumer Financial Protection Bureagulate our product a
marketing efforts. Our sales and profitability abble significantly harmed if any of these authesttommence a regulatory enforcement a
that interrupts our marketing efforts, results ipraduct recall or negative publicity, or requickgnges in product design.

Substantially higher advertising rates or a signiftant decline in availability of media time may hiner our ability to effectively market
our products and may reduce profitability.

We depend on television advertising to market aepieoducts sold directly to consumers. Conseqgyeatiarked increase in the price we r
pay for our preferred media time and/or a reducitioits availability may adversely impact our firgal performance.

We may be unable to adapt to significant changes imedia consumption habits, which could diminish theeffectiveness or efficiency ¢
our advertising.

New television technologies and services, suchidsc-on-demand, digital video recorders and Internet stregnservices are changi
traditional patterns of television viewing. Addiially, consumer attention is increasingly fragmdnéeross a variety of games, apps,
Internet and other digital media. If we are undblsuccessfully adapt our media strategies to edevision
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viewing and media consumption habits, the effeciss and efficiency of our media placements coalddversely affected, and our opere
results may be harmed.

Our revenues could decline due to changes in creditarkets and decisions made by credit providers.

Historically, a significant portion of our Directilges have been financed for our customers undeéousiprograms offered by thiggarty
consumer credit financing sources. Reductions itsemer lending and the availability of consumeditreould limit the number of custom:
with the financial means to purchase our produdigher interest rates could increase monthly payméor consumer products finan:
through one of our monthly payment plans or throatiter sources of consumer financing. In the pasthave partnered with financial sen
companies to assist our customers in obtainingnéimey to purchase our products. Our present agnetsmgth our third party consumer cre
financing providers enable certain customers taiobinancing if they qualify for the provider'siyeate label revolving credit card. We can
be assured that our third party financing providsilt continue to provide consumers with accessitedit or that credit limits under st
arrangements will not be reduced. Such restrictmn®ductions in the availability of consumer dteduld have a material adverse impac
our results of operations, financial position aadicflows.

If our contract manufacturers experience any delaydisruption or quality control problems in their op erations, we could lose revenue
and our reputation and market share may be harmed.

We have outsourced the production of all of ourdpais to thirdparty manufacturers. We rely on our contract mactufars to procul
components and provide spare parts in support ofvauranty and customer service obligations. Weegaty commit the manufacturing
each product to a single contract manufacturer.

Our reliance on contract manufacturers exposes tigetfollowing risks over which we may have linditeontrol:
* Unexpected increases in manufacturing and repats
» Interruptions in shipments if our contract manufiaet is unable to complete producti
« Inability to completely control the quality of fistied product
» Inability to completely control delivery schedul
e Changes in our contract manufacturer's busines&lnod operation
» Potential increases in our negotiated product astsresult of fluctuations in currency excharages
* Impact of the global market and economic conditionghe financial stability of our contract manutaers and their abili
to operate without requesting earlier payment tesnistters of credit;
» Potential lack of adequate capacity to manufactlirer a part of the products we require;
» Potential unauthorized reproduction or counterigitof our product

Substantially all of our contract manufacturerslacated in Asia, primarily China, and may be sabje disruption by natural disasters, as
as political, social or economic instability. Therporary or permanent loss of the services of dmupprimary contract manufacturers cc
cause a significant disruption in our product symplain and operations and delays in product shipsne

Our thirdparty manufacturing contracts are generally of ahmr shorter duration, or manufactured products sourced on the basis
individual purchase orders. There is no assurdmaewe will be able to maintain our current relabips with these parties or, if necess
establish future arrangements with other thedty manufacturers on commercially reasonable geifrarther, while we maintain an act
quality control, factory inspection and qualificati program, we cannot assure that their manufagfuaind quality control processes will
maintained at a level sufficient to meet our ineeptneeds or prevent the inadvertent sale of sobata products. While we believe t
products manufactured by our current thi@ty manufacturers could generally be procurethfedternative sources, temporary or perme
loss of services from a significant manufacturarild@ause disruption in our supply chain and openat

Our inventory purchases are subject to long lead mes, which could negatively impact our sales, cadlows and liquidity.

All of our products are produced by thipdrty manufacturers, substantially all of which leated in Asia, primarily China. Lead times
inventory purchases from our Asian suppliers, frorder placement to receipt of goods, generally eafigm approximately two to thr
months, of which transit time represents threésto-weeks. The length of our lead times requiregauplace advance manufacturing or
based on management forecasts of future demandufoproducts. Due to the length of our lead tinmsg, sales and cash flows may
negatively impacted if we do not have sufficientantory on hand to meet customer demand for sechsit In addition, our liquidity and ce
flows may be negatively affected, and inventoryaddscence may increase, if the quantity of produetorder exceeds customer deman
such items.




A delay in getting non-U.S.sourced products through port operations and custom in a timely manner could result in reduced sale
canceled sales orders and unanticipated inventorycaumulation.

Most of our imported products are subject to dubietariffs that affect the cost and quantity ofiwas types of goods imported into the U.S
our other markets. The countries in which our pmsluare produced or sold may adjust or impose neetag, duties, tariffs or otf
restrictions. Further, our business depends orability to source and distribute products in a fynmanner. As a result, we rely on the
flow of goods through open and operational portdldvaide. Labor disputes at various ports creataificant risks for our business, particule
if these disputes result in work slowdowns, lockostrikes or other disruptions during our peakanipg seasons. Any of these factors ¢
result in reduced sales, canceled sales ordersiaaticipated inventory accumulation and have aeri@dtadverse effect on our opera
results, financial position and cash flows.

Unpredictable events and circumstances relating tour international operations, including our use ofnon-U.S. manufacturers, coul
have a material adverse effect on our business.

Substantially all of our products are manufactuoetside of the U.S. and a portion of our revenueesved from sales outside the U
primarily in Canada. Accordingly, our future resutould be materially adversely affected by a wargd factors pertaining to internatiol
trade, including: changes in a specific country'segion's political or economic conditions; tragsstrictions; import and export licens
requirements; changes in regulatory requiremerdditianal efforts to comply with a variety of fogei laws and regulations; and lon
payment cycles in certain countries, thus requitiago finance customer purchases over a longadtran those made in the U.S. In addi
we rely on the performance of our employees locatddreign countries. Our ability to control thetians of these employees may be lim
by the laws and regulations in effect in each cgur@hanges in any of the above factors could lzaweterial adverse effect on our opere
results, financial position and cash flows.

Currency exchange rate fluctuations could result irhigher costs, reduced margins or decreased intertianal sales.

Substantially all of our products are manufacturatside of the U.S. and, therefore, currency exgbaate fluctuations could result in hig
costs for our products, or could disrupt the bussnaf independent manufacturers that produce agdugts, by making their purchases of
materials more expensive and more difficult to fioe Our future financial results could be sigrifidy affected by the value of the U.S. dc
in relation to the foreign currencies in which veer customers or our suppliers conduct business. fRectuations in the Chinese Renm
exchange rate have caused our costs for certaugt® to increase, reducing our margins and cashsfl Similar fluctuations and ci
increases may occur in the future. If we are untablacrease our selling prices to offset such ougeases, or if such increases have a neg
impact on sales of our products, our revenues aadjims would be reduced and our operating resuits cash flows would be negativ
impacted. In addition, a portion of our revenuaéived from sales outside the U.S., primarily ian@da. Currency rate fluctuations cc
make our products more expensive for foreign corsamand reduce our sales, which would negativdcabur operating results and ¢
flows.

We may face competition from providers of comparal®# products in categories where our patent protectiois limited or reduced due tc
patent expiration. Increased competition in those pduct categories could negatively affect our futue revenues and operating results.

A patent covering aspects of our TreadClimbproducts expired during 2013. Although we own a banof other patents covering aspec
our TreadClimbeP products, the introduction of comparable produesighed to compete with our TreadClimBdine of specialized card
machines may increase in the future as a resuthede patent expirations. Sales of cardio prodestpecially Bowflex® TreadClimber®
products, represent a substantial portion of ouedisegment revenues. Introduction by competitdreomparable products, a matui
product lifecycle or other factors could resultiecline in our revenues derived from these prizdécsignificant decline in our sales of th
products would have a material adverse effect aroparating results, financial position and cashvi.

Failure or inability to protect our intellectual pr operty could significantly harm our competitive postion.

Protecting our intellectual property is an esséri#iator in maintaining our competitive position tine health and fitness industry. Failur
maximize or to successfully assert our intellecpralperty rights could impact our competitivenésd%® rely on trademark, trade secret, pe
and copyright laws to protect our intellectual prdp rights. Many factors bear upon the exclusiwaership and right to exploit intellecti
properties, including, without limitation, priorghts of third parties and nonuse and/or nonenfoecegrny us and/or related entities. While
make efforts to develop and protect our intellelcpwaperty, the validity, enforceability and comrmiat value of our intellectual property rig
may be reduced or eliminated. We cannot be sutethantellectual property rights will be maxim@er that they can be successfully asse
There is a risk that we will not be able to obtaimd perfect our own or, where appropriate, liceinsgllectual property rights necessan
compete successfully within the




marketplace for our products. We cannot be surethiese rights, if obtained, will not be invaliddteircumvented or challenged in the fut
If we do not, or are unable to, adequately provectintellectual property, then we may face difftgun differentiating our products from thc
of our competitors and our business, operatingltseand financial condition may be adversely atect

Trademark infringement or other intellectual property claims relating to our products could increase or costs.

Our industry is susceptible to litigation regardingdemark and patent infringement and other itélial property rights. We could becon
plaintiff or defendant in litigation involving tramnark or patent infringement claims or claims afdwh of license. The prosecution or defi
of intellectual property litigation is both costind disruptive of the time and resources of ouragament, regardless of the claim's merit.
could also be required to pay substantial damagsstilement costs to resolve intellectual prop#tityation or related matters.

We also may not be able to successfully acquirdl@ttual property rights, protect existing rights,potentially prevent others from claim
that we have violated their proprietary rights whes launch new products. We could incur substactals in defending against such cle
even if they are without basis, and we could becsnigect to judgments or settlements requiringoupdy substantial damages, royaltie
other charges.

Future impairments of intangible assets could negately impact our operating results.

We had goodwill of $2.7 million and other intanghbssets of $12.6 million as of December 31, 2@&8. future impairment charges,
significant, could materially and adversely affeat operating results. An unexpected decline irenere, changes in market conditions, cha
in competitive products or technologies or a chaimgmanagement's intentions regarding utilizatiérintangible assets could lead to ful
impairment charges.

We are subject to periodic litigation, product liahility risk and other regulatory proceedings which muld result in unexpected expense
time and resources.

From time to time, we may be a defendant in lavssaimd regulatory actions relating to our businesshe former operations of ¢
discontinued Commercial business segment. Dueddntherent uncertainties of litigation and regutatproceedings, we cannot accura
predict the ultimate outcome of any such proceeddidg unfavorable outcome could have a materiabes/impact on our business, finar
condition and results of operations. In additiony aignificant litigation in the future, regardles$ its merits, could divert manageme
attention from our operations and may result irstaititial legal costs.

We are subject to warranty claims for our productswhich could result in unexpected expense.

Many of our products carry limited warranties fafelcts in quality and workmanship. We may expegesignificant expense as the resu
product quality issues, product recalls or prodigdiility claims which may have a material adveeféect on our business. We maintai
warranty reserve for estimated future warrantynetaiHowever, the actual costs of servicing futuegranty claims may exceed the reserve
have a material adverse effect on our results efains, financial condition and cash flows. Indiidn, we remain contingently liable 1
product warranty obligations which were transferteduyers of our Commercial business product |iffethe buyer is unable to fulfill su
obligations.

Disruption to our information and communication sygems could result in interruptions to our businessand the planned implementatior
of new systems for critical business functions hdigens the risk of disruption.

Our business is reliant on information and commation technology, and a substantial portion of i@wenues are generated with the suj
of information and communication systems. The sse@d# our Direct business is heavily dependentwmability to respond to customer si
inquiries and process sales transactions usingcallircenter communication systems, Internet websited similar data monitoring &
communication systems provided and supported bgl-garties. If such systems were to fail, or expemesignificant or lengthy interruptio
in availability or service, our revenues could batenially affected. We also rely on information teyss in all stages of our product cycle, f
design to distribution, and we use such systenasrasthod of communication between employees, sengphind customers. In addition, we
information systems to maintain our accounting réspassist in trade receivables collection andbooer service efforts, and forecast oper:
results and cash flows.

System failures or service interruptions may o@sithe result of a number of factors, includingnpater viruses; hacking or other unlav
activities by third parties; disasters; equipméatrdware or software failures; ineffective implenaion of new systems or systems upgre
cable outages, extended power failures, or ourilihabr failure to properly protect, repair or nrm&in our communication and informat
systems. To mitigate the risk of business intefamptwe have in place a disaster recovery progtaah targets our most critical operatic
systems. If our disaster recovery system is in&ffecin whole or in
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part, or efforts conducted by us or thpdrties to prevent or respond to system interragtio a timely manner are ineffective, our abitib
conduct operations would be significantly affectédve do not consider the potential impact oficet decisions related to systems or pro
design and implementation, this could lead to ojmmal challenges and increased costs. Any of foeementioned factors could hav
material adverse affect on our operating resutgncial position and cash flows.

Our current primary enterprise resource planningtesy is highly customized to our business and wg maerience difficulties as \
transition to new systems during 2014. Difficult@sdelays in implementing our new information sys$ or significant system failures cc
disrupt our operations and have a material adwffeet on our operating results, financial positéord cash flows.

System Security Risks, Data Protection Breaches arlyber Attacks Could Disrupt Our Operations.

We manage and store various proprietary informatod sensitive or confidential data relating to business, including sensitive ¢
personally identifiable information. Breaches of sacurity measures or the accidental loss, inaeinedisclosure or unapproved dissemine
of proprietaryinformation or sensitive or confidential data abast or our customers, including the potential lossdisclosure of sut
information or data as a result of fraud, trickeryother forms of deception, could expose us, ostamers or the individuals affected to a
of loss or misuse of this information, result itigiation and potential liability for us, damage dwand and reputation or otherwise harm
business. In addition, the cost and operationas@guences of implementing further data protectieasures could be significant.

Experienced computer programmers and hackers magblee to penetrate our network security and misgppate or compromise ¢
confidential information or that of third partiegeate system disruptions or cause shutdowns. Cemprogrammers and hackers also me
able to develop and deploy viruses, worms and atfedicious software programs that attack or otheevexploit any security vulnerabilities
our systems. In addition, sophisticated hardwarkaperating system software and applications tleaprecure from third parties may coni
defects in design or manufacture, including "buagst other problems that could unexpectedly interfeith the operation of the system.
costs to us to eliminate or alleviate cyber or pteecurity problems, bugs, viruses, worms, mali€i@oftware programs and sect
vulnerabilities could be significant, and our effoto address these problems may not be successiutould result in interruptions, dele
cessation of service and loss of existing or paaeantistomers that may impede our sales, manufagtudistribution or other critical functions.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2. Properties

Following is a summary of our principal propertésof December 31, 2013 :

Owned or

Location Primary Function(s) Leased
Washington Corporate headquarters, customer call center ard R&ility Leased
Oregon Warehouse and distribution Leased
Canada Warehouse and distribution Leased
China Quiality assurance office Leased

Each of our principal properties is used by botln Direct segment and our Retail segment. Our pt@segenerally are wethaintainec
adequate and suitable for their intended purporadswae believe our existing properties will meet operational needs for the foresee
future. If we require additional warehouse or dadfispace in the future, we believe we will be ableobtain such space on commerci
reasonable terms.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In 2004, we were sued in the Southern District efMNY ork by BioSig Instruments, Inc. for alleged guatinfringement in connection with ¢
incorporation of heart rate monitors into certaamdio products. No significant activity in the gjtition occurred until 2008. In 2012, the Un
States District Court granted summary judgmentg@m grounds that BioSig'patents were invalid as a matter of law. BioSipealed th
grant of summary judgment and, in April 2013, thateld States Court of Appeals for the Federal Qinayversed the District Coud’decisio
on summary judgment and remanded the case to thteidDiCourt for further proceedings. On January 2014, the U.S. Supreme Cc
granted our petition for a writ of certiorari todzdss the legal standard applied by the FederauiCin determining whether the patents ma
valid under applicable law. The U.S. Supreme Caugxpected to hear arguments in April 2014. Wendbbelieve that our use of heart |
monitors utilized or purchased from third parti@sd otherwise, infringe the BioSig patents.

In addition to the matter described above, fronethmtime we are subject to litigation, claims @asdessments that arise in the ordinary ci
of business, including disputes that may arise fiorellectual property related matters. Managentatieves that any liability resulting frc
such additional matters will not have a materialeade effect on our financial position, result®pérations or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Relaed Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities

Market for our Common Stocl

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stockliange (the “NYSE”) and trades under the symbolSNIAs of February 26, 2014, the
wer e 52 hdders of record of our common stock and approxiiga28,000 beneficial shareholders. The followinbl¢éasets forth the high a
low sales prices of our common stock for each plepiesented:

High Low

2013:

Quarter 1 $ 766 $ 3.4t

Quarter 2 8.7t 6.34

Quarter 3 9.87 6.1

Quarter 4 8.4¢ 6.7¢€
2012:

Quarter 1 $ 30 $ 174

Quarter 2 3.5C 2.2C

Quarter 3 3.64 2.2¢

Quarter 4 4.0C 2.5¢

We did not pay any dividends on our common stocR(h2 or 2013 and we currently have no plans todagends on our common stock
future periods. Payment of any future dividendsewlpermitted under our borrowing arrangements,t ith@ discretion of our Board
Directors, which considers various factors suchoas financial condition, operating results, curramid anticipated cash needs and fu
expansion plans.

Equity Compensation Plan
See Item 12 for Equity Compensation Plan infornratio

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securiti¢
The following table provides information about @apurchases of our equity securities during thetfoguarter ended December 31, 2013:

(@) (b)
(€) (d)
Total Number of Maximum Number
Average Shares (or Units) (or Approximate Dollar
Total Number of Price Paid Purchased as Part Value) of Shares (or
Shares (or Units) per Share of Publicly Announced  Units) that May Yet Be Purchased
Period Purchased (or Unit) Plans or Programs Under the Plans or Programs
October 1 to
October 31, 201: 1,688 $7.96 — —

November 1 to
November 30,
2013 1,689 7.57 — —

December 1 to
December 31,
2013 1,690 8.43 — —

Total 5,067 7.99 — _

@ Consists of shares withheld from the vestingiporof a restricted stock unit award granted todérivi. Cazenavi
our Chief Executive Officer. We will withhold frormach monthly vesting portion of the award the nundfeshare:
sufficient to satisfy Mr. Cazenave's tax withholgliobligation incident to such vesting, unless Maz€nave should fir
elect to satisfy the tax obligation by cash payntentis. We do not have any publicly announced tgcgecuritie:
repurchase plans or programs.
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Stock Performance Grapl

The graph below compares the cumulative total $tolcler return of our common stock with the cumuriatiotal return of th&l\YSE Composite
Index and the S& P SmallCap 600 Index for the period commencing December 31, 2008 anéhgreh December 31, 2013. T5&P SmallCap
600 Index was chosen because we do not believe we can rddgddantify an industry index or specific peeruss that would offer
meaningful comparison. TH&& P SmallCap 600 Index represents a broad-based index of companies witttasimarket capitalization.

The graph assumes $100 was invested, on Decemb2038, in our common stock and each index predeffiee comparisons in the ta
below are not intended to forecast or be indicadf/iture performance of our common stock.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial dsit@uld be read in connection with our audited cbaated financial statements and rel:
notes thereto and with Management's Discussionfaradlysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gqiems, which are included elsewh
in this Form 10K. The consolidated statements of operations datéifcal 2013, 2012 and 2011, and the selectedatmfated balance shi
data as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are denved find are qualified by reference to, the auditeasolidated financial statements wt
are included in this Form 1K- The consolidated statements of operations datfidcal 2010 and 2009 and the consolidated balaheet da
as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 are defiwedaudited consolidated financial statements wiaiee not included in this Form 10-K.

For the Year Ended December 31,

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Consolidated Statements of Operations Data

Net sales $ 218,80: $ 193,92t $ 180,41 $ 168,45( $ 189,26(
Cost of sales 112,32¢ 102,88 101,95: 91,70¢ 92,74¢
Gross profit 106,47 91,03° 78,45¢ 76,74¢ 96,51¢

Operating expenses:

Selling and marketing 66,48t 58,61° 54,49: 64,03¢ 75,827
General and administrative 18,70¢ 17,66¢ 17,14: 19,37: 24,61¢
Research and development 5,562 4,16: 3,22 2,90¢ 5,22
Restructuring — — — — 14,15
Asset impairment — — — — 5,90/
Total operating expenses 90,75 80,44¢ 74,86( 86,31¢ 125,72(
Operating income (loss) 15,72« 10,58¢ 3,59¢ (9,56%) (29,20%)

Other income (expense):

Interest income 14 18 65 15 77
Interest expense (3€) 56 (46€) (140) (16€)
Other 337 (24€) (12) 464 (194)
Total other income (expense) 31t a72) (412 33¢ (28E)
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxes 16,03¢ 10,41¢ 3,181 (9,230 (29,490
Income tax provision (benefif) (32,08Y) (22¢) 68€ 58¢ (20,880
Income (loss) from continuing operations 48,12¢ 10,64: 2,501 (9,81 (18,610
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 70 6,241 (1,08 (13,029 (34,687
Net income (loss) $ 47,95 $ 16,88! $ 142 % (22,84) $ (53,29)
Basic income (loss) per share from continuing djp@ma $ 158 % 032 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.37) $ (0.61)
Basic income (loss) per share from discontinuedaijmns (0.01) 0.21 (0.03) (0.42) (.19
Basic net income (loss) per share $ 154 % 058 $ 0.08 $ 0.79 $ 2.79)
Diluted income (loss) per share from continuingragiens $ 15 % 032 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.37) % (0.62)
Diluted income (loss) per share from discontinupdrations (0.01) 0.21 (0.03) (0.42) (.19
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ 15z % 0.5t $ 0.08 $ 0.79 $ 2.79)

Shares used in per share calculations:
Basic 31,07: 30,85: 30,74¢ 30,74« 30,66
Diluted 31,45' 30,97+ 30,77¢ 30,74« 30,66¢

As of December 31,
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Cash and cash equivalents $ 40,97¢ % 23,200 $ 17,427  $ 14,29¢  $ 7,28¢
Warkina canital 45 G6° 25 .41( 19.43¢ 15.31¢ 21 06:




Total assets 143,56 94,31 82,81 78,36 115,17:

Long-term notes payable — — 5,59¢ 5,141 —
Other long-term liabilities 4,071 6,50¢ 6,61¢ 6,14¢ 6,48¢
Total shareholders' equity 91,56¢ 43,32¢ 31,95:¢ 30,79¢ 52,48:

(1) Income tax benefit in 2013 includes a $38.9iarilcredit related to the reversal of our defert@dasset valuation allowance.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion and analys our financial condition and results of op@ras together with the consolida
financial statements and related notes that ateded in Part I, Item 8 of this Form 10-K. Thisdussion contains forwatdeking statemen
based upon current expectations that involve @sidsuncertainties.

Our results of operations may vary significantlgnir period-toperiod. Our revenues typically fluctuate due to $keasonality of our indust
customer buying patterns, product innovation, tatire and level of competition for health and f#s@roducts, our ability to procure prodi
to meet customer demand, the level of spendingand, effectiveness of, our media and advertisingyqarms and our ability to attract n
customers and maintain existing sales relationshipaddition, our revenues are highly susceptibleconomic factors, including, among o
things, the overall condition of the economy anel &vailability of consumer credit in both the UditStates and Canada. Our profit mar
may vary in response to the aforementioned fa@ndsour ability to manage product costs. Profitgiver may also be affected by fluctuati
in the costs or availability of materials used tarmfacture our products, product warranty costs cthst of fuel, and changes in costs of ¢
distribution or manufacturingelated services. Our operating profits or lossey miso be affected by the efficiency and effectags of oL
organization. Historically, our operating expenbase been influenced by media costs to producamtidbute advertisements of our prodi
on television, the Internet and other media, facitbsts, operating costs of our information anchgwnications systems, product supply ¢
management, customer support and new product davelat activities. In addition, our operating exmnhave been affected from time-to
time by asset impairment charges, restructuringggsaand other significant unusual or infrequepeases.

As a result of the above and other factors, ouiogeioperiod operating results may not be indicativeufife performance. You should
place undue reliance on our operating results dmudild consider our prospects in light of the riskgpenses and difficulties typice
encountered by us and other companies, both wihth outside our industry. We may not be able taesgfully address these risks
difficulties and, consequently, we cannot assure gy future growth or profitability. For more imfoation, see our discussion of Risk Fac
located at Part I, Item 1A of this Form 10-K.

OVERVIEW

We are committed to providing innovative, qualitiigions to help people achieve a fit and healtfgstyle. Our principal business activit
include designing, developing, sourcing and marnkgetighquality cardio and strength fitness products anated accessories for consul
use, primarily in the United States and Canada. gdoducts are sold under some of the mestgnized brand names in the fitness indL
Nautilus®, Bowflex®, Schwinn®, Schwinn Fitness™ and Univer$al

We market our products through two distinct digttibn channels, Direct and Retail, which we constdebe separate business segments
Direct business offers products directly to consumersutiinctelevision advertising, catalogs and the Irger@urRetail business offers o
products through a network of independent retaihpanies with stores and websites located in théedrtates and internationally. We
derive a portion of our revenue from the licensdfigur brands and intellectual property.

Our Net Sales in 2013 were $218.8 million , anéase of $24.9 million , or 12.8% , compared to Slales of $193.9 million in 2012Nei
Sales of our Direct segment increased $11.7 million9.3% , compared to 201 primarily due to increased consumer demand forcaudic
products, especially the BowfléTreadClimbef®. Net Sales of our Retail segment increased byd&tillion , or 20.2%n 2013, compared
2012, primarily due to growth in strength products.

Income From Continuing Operations was $48.1 milliar $1.53 per diluted share, in 2013 , compaoe$i10.6 million , or $0.34er dilutec
share, in 2012 . Income From Continuing Operatioh$48.1 million in 2013 included a $38.9 milliamedit related to the reversal of
deferred tax asset valuation allowance. Withoutsaeration of the reversal of our deferred tax tagakiation allowance, the improvemen
our results from continuing operations in 2013 wdaiwen primarily by higher sales and increased fimargn both our Retail and Dire
segments.

Net Income wa$48.0 million , or $1.52 per diluted share, in 20d@mpared to $16.9 million , or $0.p8r diluted share, in 2012. Net Incc
in 2012 included Income From Discontinued Operatioh$6.2 million , or $0.21 per diluted share.
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Results from discontinued operations relate todibposal of our former Commercial business, whigs wompleted in April 2011. We reac
substantial completion of asset liquidation at Delser 31, 2012. Income From Discontinued Operatimin$6.2 million in 2012 primaril
represents a currency translation adjustment gdated to the liquidation of European subsidiarAthough there was no revenue relate
the Commercial business in 2013, we continue t@ hegal and accounting expenses as we work wittoaities on final deregistration of et
entity and product liability expenses associateith wioduct previously sold into the Commercial ateln

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amounts of assets and liaslitrevenues and expenses, and related disclosucestingent assets and liabilities in
consolidated financial statements. An accountirignage is considered to be critical if it meetstbof the following criteria: (i) the estim
requires assumptions about matters that are higitgrtain at the time the accounting estimate idenand (ii) different estimates reason:
could have been used, or changes in the estimateath reasonably likely to occur from period toige: may have a material impact on
presentation of our financial condition, changeBnancial condition or results of operations.

Our critical accounting policies and estimatesdiseussed below. We have not made any materialgeisain the methodologies we use in
critical accounting estimates during the past tHiseal years. If our assumptions or estimates ghan future periods, the impact on
financial position and operating results could kaeral.

Revenue Recognitio

Direct and Retail product sales and shipping reesrare recorded when products are shipped angifiees to customers. In most instal
Retail sales to customers are made pursuant ttea santract that provides for transfer of botte ténd risk of loss to the customer upon
delivery to the carrier. For Direct sales, reveisugenerally recognized when product is shippedieRee is recognized net of applicable <
incentives, such as promotional discounts, rebatesreturn allowances. We estimate the revenuedngfancentive programs based on
planned duration of the program and historical expee.

Sales Discounts and Allowanct

Product sales and shipping revenues are reporteaf peomotional discounts and return allowance® &8timate the revenue impact of r
sales incentive programs based on the plannedialuraftthe program and historical experience. & &mount of sales incentives is reasor
estimable, the impact of such incentives is reabraethe later of the time the customer is notifiédhe sales incentive or the time of the ¢
We estimate our liability for product returns basadhistorical experience and record the expedbéidation as a reduction of revenue. If ac
return costs differ from previous estimates, theant of the liability and corresponding revenue adgisted in the period in which such ¢
occur.

Our calculations of amounts owed for sales discowarid allowances contain uncertainties because tbgyire management to mi
assumptions in interim periods and to apply judgnmmegarding a number of factors, including estirddigure customer inventory purcha
and returns.

Goodwill and Other Long-Term Asset Valuation

We evaluate our indefinitived Intangible Assets and Goodwill for potentiadpairment annually or when events or circumstanodiate
their carrying value may be impaired. Finiiteed Intangible Assets, including patents and pat&ghts, and Property, Plant and Equipmen
evaluated for impairment when events or circumsariadicate the carrying value may be impaired. ®amdwill or other longerm asst
impairment charges were recognized in 2013 , 202001 .

Our impairment loss calculations contain uncertainbecause they require management to make assnmphd to apply judgment in orde
estimate future cash flows and asset fair values.j@gments regarding potential impairment areesdaan a number of factors including:
timing and amount of anticipated cash flows; mada@tditions; relative levels of risk; the cost apdal; terminal values; royalty rates; and
allocation of revenues, expenses and assets drilitika to business segments. Each of these faaan significantly affect the value of
Goodwill or other long-term assets and, thereby]dbave a material adverse affect on our finarquisition and results of operations.

Product Warranty Obligations

Our products carry limited defined warranties fefatts in materials or workmanship. Our productrawaties generally obligate us to pay
the cost of replacement parts, cost of shippingpugs to our customers and, in certain instane@wjce labor costs. At the time of sale,
record a liability for the estimated costs of fllilfig future warranty claims. The estimated waryant

17




costs are recorded as a component of cost of g&esd on historical warranty claim experiencearailable product quality data. If necess
we adjust our liability for specific warranty matevhen they become known and are reasonably dd8m@ur estimates of warranty expet
are based on significant judgment, and the frequend cost of warranty claims are subject to venatWarranty expenses are affected by
performance of new products, significant manufantuior design defects not discovered until after phoduct is delivered to the custor
product failure rates and variances in expectedirepsts.

Litigation and Loss Contingencie

From time to time, we may be involved in claimsysaits and other proceedings. Such matters invohgertainty as to the eventual outco
and any losses or gains we may ultimately realisgenwone or more future events occur or fail to océde record expenses for litigation i
loss contingencies when it is probable that alitgthas been incurred and the amount of the l@sshe reasonably estimated. We estimat
probability of such losses based on the advicatefmal and external counsel, outcomes from sirlitigation, status of the lawsuits (includ
settlement initiatives), legislative developmemid ather factors.

Due to the numerous variables associated with thueggments and assumptions, both the precisionraliability of the resulting estimates
the related loss contingencies are subject to antial uncertainties. We regularly monitor our mstied exposure to these contingencies at
additional information becomes known, we may chamgeestimates accordingly.

Deferred Tax Asset- Valuation Allowance

We account for income taxes based on the assdiadnility method, whereby deferred tax assets aatillties are recognized for the future
consequences attributable to differences betweeritancial statement carrying amounts and thebtsis of existing assets and liabilit
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measuredyube enacted tax rates that are expected ta b&ect when the temporary differences
expected to be included, as income or expenséeirapplicable tax return. The effect of a chang&inrates on our deferred tax assets
liabilities is recognized in the period of the etmaent.

We have recorded a valuation allowance to reduceDetierred Income Tax Assets to the amount we belis more likely than not to

realized. As we determined, based on reviewinghallpositive and negative evidence, that it is nikedy than not that the benefit from cert
Deferred Income Tax Assets will not be realized haee a valuation allowance against net Deferredrire Tax Assets of $12.9 milliorf our
assumptions change and we determine we will betabiealize these Deferred Income Tax Assets,akédénefits related to any reversal of
valuation allowance will be accounted for in theipe in which we make such determination. Likewislgould we determine that we would
be able to realize our Deferred Income Tax Assethe future, an adjustment to the valuation allowgato reserve for the Deferred Income
Assets would increase expense in the period suehndimation was made.

For example, in the second quarter of 2013, weuanatl the potential realization of our Deferredoime Tax Assets, considering both pos
and negative evidence, including cumulative incamss for the past thregears and forecasted taxable income. As a restitti®evaluatio
we concluded that, as of June 30, 2013, a majofitthe existing valuation allowance on our domeEteferred Income Tax Assets was
longer required. As of December 31, 2013, we maintae same position that the partial release dfiataon allowance is still appropria
Accordingly, an income tax benefit of $38.9 milliamms recorded during 2013 related to the redudfaur existing valuation allowance.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

Significant judgments are required in determiniag provisions and evaluating tax positions. Suclyients require us to interpret existing
law and other published guidance as applied tocomumstances. If our financial results or othdevant facts change, thereby impacting
likelihood of realizing the tax benefit of an untzgén tax position, significant judgment would bephgd in determining the effect of the char
A tax benefit from an uncertain tax position mayrbeognized when it is more likely than not that gosition will be sustained based on
technical merits of the position upon examinatianjuding resolutions of any related appeals dgdition.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The discussion that follows should be read in cocfion with our consolidated financial statemermis #he related notes in this report.
comparisons to prior year results are in referea@mntinuing operations only in each period, usletherwise indicated.

Results of operations information was as followstliousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 Change % Change
Net sales $ 218,80 $ 193,92« $ 24,87 12.8%
Cost of sales 112,32t 102,88t¢ 9,431 9.2%
Gross profit 106,47 91,03’ 15,44( 17.(%
Operating expenses:
Selling and marketing 66,48¢ 58,61’ 7,86¢ 13.4%
General and administrative 18,70: 17,66¢ 1,03¢ 5.2%
Research and development 5,56% 4,16: 1,39¢ 33.6%
Total operating expenses 90,75t 80,44¢ 10,30¢ 12.£%
Operating income 15,72¢ 10,58¢ 5,13¢
Other income (expense):
Interest income 14 18 4
Interest expense (36) 56 (92
Other 337 (24€) 582
Total other income (expense), net 31t (172) 487
Income before income taxes 16,03¢ 10,41¢ 5,62:
Income tax benefit (32,08%) (22€) (31,859
Income from continuing operations 48,12« 10,64: 37,48:
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, nehodme taxes (70 6,241 (6,417
Net income $ 47,95 $ 16,88 $ 31,07:
Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 Change % Change
Net sales $ 193,92« $ 180,41 $ 13,51 7.5%
Cost of sales 102,88¢ 101,95: 93¢ 0.¢%
Gross profit 91,03’ 78,45¢ 12,57¢ 16.(%
Operating expenses:
Selling and marketing 58,61’ 54,49¢ 4,12: 7.€%
General and administrative 17,66¢ 17,14: 52€ 3.1%
Research and development 4,16: 3,22 94C 29.2%
Total operating expenses 80,44¢ 74,86( 5,58¢ 7.5%
Operating income 10,58¢ 3,59¢ 6,98¢
Other income (expense):
Interest income 18 65 47
Interest expense 56 (46€) 522
Other (24€) (12) (23%)
Total other expense, net (172) (412) 24C
Income before income taxes 10,41¢ 3,181 7,22¢
Income tax (benefit) expense (226€) 68€ (912)
Income from continuing operations 10,64: 2,501 8,141
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, nehodéme taxes 6,241 (1,087) 7,32

Net income $ 16,88: $ 1,42 $ 15,46
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Results of operations information by segment waslémsws (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 Change % Change
Net sales:
Direct $ 136,66 $ 124,97 $ 11,68t 9.2%
Retail 76,77" 63,89: 12,88« 20.2%
Royalty income 5,36¢ 5,057 30¢€ 6.1%
$ 218,80: $ 193,92¢ $ 24,87 12.8%
Cost of sales:
Direct $ 55,00¢ $ 53,34¢ $ 1,65¢ 3.1%
Retail 57,31¢ 49,54( 7,77¢ 15.7%
Royalty income — — —
$ 112,32¢ $ 102,88 $ 9,431 9.2%
Gross profit:
Direct $ 81,65¢ $ 71,62¢ $ 10,02¢ 14.(%
Retail 19,457 14,35: 5,10¢ 35.6%
Royalty income 5,36¢ 5,057 30¢€ 6.1%
$ 106,47 $ 91,03 $ 15,44( 17.(%
Gross margin:
Direct 59.7% 57.2% 24C basis points
Retall 25.2% 22.5% 28C basis points
Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 Change % Change
Net sales:
Direct $ 124,97¢ $ 107,06: $ 17,917 16.7%
Retail 63,89: 68,59 (4,700 (6.9)9%
Royalty income 5,057 4,76( 297 6.2%
$ 193,92¢ $ 180,41: $ 13,51¢ 7.5%
Cost of sales:
Direct $ 53,34¢ $  49,40¢ $ 3,94: 8.C%
Retail 49,54( 52,541 (3,007) (5.1%
Royalty income — — —
$ 102,88¢ $ 101,95: $ 93¢ 0.8%
Gross profit:
Direct $ 71,62¢ $ 57,65¢ $ 13,97 24.2%
Retail 14,35 16,04« (1,697 (10.%
Royalty income 5,057 4,76( 297 6.2 %
Total gross profit $ 91,03 $  78,45¢ $ 12,57¢ 16.C%
Gross margin:
Direct 57.2% 53.¢% 34C basis points
Retall 22.5% 23.4% (90) basis points

The following tables compare the net sales of oajomproduct lines within each business segmenth@nsands):
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Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 Change % Change

Direct net sales:
Cardio product§’ $ 11484t $ 100,677 % 14,16¢ 14.1%
Strength product® 21,81: 24,30: (2,489 (10.29)%
136,66: 124,97¢ 11,68¢ 9.2%

Retail net sales:
Cardio product§’ 36,69: 36,20¢ 48¢ 1.2%
Strength product® 40,08 27,68: 12,40: 44.€%
76,77¢ 63,89: 12,88« 20.2%
Royalty income 5,36¢ 5,057 30¢ 6.1%
$ 218,80 $  193,92¢ $ 24,871 12.€%

@ Cardio products include: TreadClimigrtreadmills, exercise bikes, ellipticals, CoreBdtisformer®, Bowflex Boost™ and DVDs.
@ Strength products include: home gyms, selectdrizenbbells, kettlebell weights, UpperCut™ and asodes.

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 Change % Change

Direct net sales:
Cardio product§’ $ 100,677 $ 75,98. $ 24,69: 32.E%
Strength product® 24,30 31,07¢ (6,77¢) (21.9%
124,97¢ 107,06: 17,917 16.7%

Retail net sales:
Cardio product§’ 36,20¢ 43,71¢ (7,509 (17.2%
Strength product® 27,68: 24,87: 2,80¢ 11.2%
63,89: 68,59: (4,700 (6.9%
Royalty income 5,057 4,76( 297 6.2%
$ 193,92¢ $ 180,41 $ 13,51 7.5 %

@ Cardio products include: TreadClimigrtreadmills, exercise bikes, ellipticals, CoreBd&igformer® and DVDs.
@ Strength products include: home gyms, selectdrilzenbbells, kettlebell weights, UpperCut™ and asoses.

Net Sales and Cost of Sal

Direct

The 9.3%ncrease in Direct Net Sales in 2013 compared i@ 2@as primarily related to a 14.1% increase ireElisales of our cardio produ
especially the Bowflex¥ TreadClimber® . We believe the increased consumer demand for ouliccproducts was driven by increa
advertising effectiveness, improved call centee@ff’eness and higher U.S. consumer credit apprated.

The 16.7% increase in Direct Net Sales in 2012 ayegpto 2011 was primarily related to a 32.B#trease in sales of our cardio prodt
reflecting strong consumer demand, especially far Bowflex ® TreadClimber® , which we believe was driven by increased adved
effectiveness, improved call center effectivenesstigher U.S. consumer credit approval rates.

The increases in Direct Net Sales of cardio praairc2013 compared to 2012, and in 2012 compar@@®1d, were partially offset by 20.2%
and a 21.8% decline, respectively, in Direct NdeSaf strength products, primarily rod-based hayyes. The declines in sales of rbdse!
home gyms were attributable, in part, to the reduacof advertising for these products over time r@mnagement determined that televi
advertising spending on this mature product categ@s generating suboptimal returns. We continuamaoket and sell robased home gyr
through more cost efficient online media, and safebese products have increased through the IReginent.
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Combined consumer credit approvals by our primarg secondary U.S. third-party financing providersrev36.1%in 2013 compared
31.6% in 2012 and 25.0% in 2011.

The increase in Cost of Sales in our Direct busime2013 compared to 2012 was almost entirelytedlto the growth in Direct Net Sales
was partially offset by the improvement in grossgiva

Of the increase in Cost of Sales of our Direct hess in 2012 compared to 2011, approximately $7lBmwas due to higher sales volur
which was partially offset by a $2.9 million decsean Cost of Sales attributable to a shift in picidsales mix and a $0.4 million reductiol
supply chain costs, including freight.

The 240 basis point and 3#@sis point increases in the gross margin of oweddibusiness for 2013 compared to 2012 and 20dtpaced t
2011, respectively, were primarily due to greatesamption of fixed supply chain costs due to thghlkr sales volume. We are no lor
required to pay royalties on certain expired pat@uoivering aspects of our TreadclimBeroducts. The impact of this on our Direct segr
gross margins is uncertain.

Retail

The 20.2%increase in Retail Net Sales in 2013 compared 12 2@as driven primarily by increased sales of drargth products. Net Sales
strength products in the Retail Segment increade8P4in 2013 compared to 2012, primarily driven by highkales of selectorized dumbb
and home gyms. The 1.3Mcrease in Retail cardio sales for 2013 compane2i0tL2 was primarily due to the introduction of oww line o
cardio products in the third quarter of 2013.

The 6.9% decline in Retail Net Sales in 2012 comgdo 2011 was primarily due to a 17.2#cline in sales of cardio products, incluc
indoor bikes and ellipticals, partially offset by 1.3% increase in sales of strength productsarily selectorized dumbbells.

The increase in Retail Cost of Sales in 2013 corthbér 2012 was due to the increase in Retail NitsSpartially offset by improvements
Retail gross margin. The decrease in Retail CoSatés in 2012 compared to 2011 was due to thedeerin Retail Net Sales, partially of
by a decline in Retail gross margin.

The 280basis point improvement in Retail gross margin 0.2 compared to 2012 was primarily due to the p@sitnpact of a Retail pric
increase implemented in the third quarter of 2012 greater absorption of fixed supply chain cosis @ higher sales volume.

Gross margins in our Retail business declined bpe&s points in 2012 compared to 2011, as the IRetaé increase we implemented in
third quarter of 2012 was more than offset by bssorption of fixed supply chain costs due to losades volume.

Selling and Marketing

Dollars in thousands Year Ended December 31, Change

2013 2012 $ %
Selling and Marketing $66,486 $58,617 $7,869 13.4%
As % of Net Sales 30.4% 30.2%
Dollars in thousands Year Ended December 31, Change

2012 2011 $ %
Selling and Marketing $58,617 $54,494 $4,123 7.6%
As % of Net Sales 30.2% 30.2%

The increases in Selling and Marketing in 2013 carag to 2012, and in 2012 compared to 2011, wanaapity due to increases in me
advertising, which also contributed to the improests in Net Sales in 2013 compared to 2012, arRDi? compared to 2011. In additi
finance fees payable to our consumer finance pessijdas a result of increased Net Sales in thogedse increased by $1.6 million in 2(
compared to 2012 and $0.9 million in 2012 compa&oe2D11.

Selling and Marketing as a percentage of Net Salaffected by the mix of Direct sales compare®étail sales. Increasing Direct sales
percentage of total Net Sales increases the pagentf Selling and Marketing as a percentage of3déds and vice versa.
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Media advertising expense of our Direct busineskadargest component of Selling and Marketing wad as follows:

Dollars in thousands Year Ended December 31, Change

2013 2012 $ %
Media advertising $35,819 $30,903 $4,916 15.9%
Dollars in thousands Year Ended December 31, Change

2012 2011 $ %
Media advertising $30,903 $28,582 $2,321 8.1%

We made strategic increased investments in medlacezative advertising in 2013 to further suppbe taunch of UpperCut™ and to bt
sales leads for all Direct products in the seccaalfldf 2013.

General and Administrative

Dollars in thousands Year Ended December 31, Change

2013 2012 $ %
General and Administrative  $18,705 $17,669 $1,036 5.9%
As % of Net Sales 8.5% 9.1%
Dollars in thousands Year Ended December 31, Change

2012 2011 $ %
General and Administrative ~ $17,669 $17,143 $526 3.1%
As % of Net Sales 9.1% 9.5%

The increase in General and Administrative in 26@@pared to 2012 was primarily due to a $0.4 nrilliacrease in infrastructure costs al
$0.8 million increase in employee related costsgtigily offset by a $0.3 million one-time chargedf12 for lease write-off costs.

The increase in General and Administrative in 2@bghpared to 2011 was primarily due to increasemfiormation technology and leg
expenses totaling $1.0 million, partially offset ductions of $0.3 million in depreciation and atization expenses and $0.2 million
personnel costs.

The decreases in General and Administrative asreeptage of Net Sales in 2013 compared to 2012imar&D12 compared to 2011 w
primarily due to higher Net Sales.

Research and Developme

Dollars in thousands Year Ended December 31, Change

2013 2012 $ %
Research and Developmer  $5,562 $4,163 $1,399 33.6%
As % of Net Sales 2.5% 2.1%
Dollars in thousands Year Ended December 31, Change

2012 2011 $ %
Research and Developmer  $4,163 $3,223 $940 29.2%
As % of Net Sales 2.1% 1.8%

The increases in Research and Development in 20d®ared to 2012 and in 2012 compared to 2011 weneagly due to our continue
investment in new products. We expect ResearchDawelopment expense to increase in 2014 comparg2018, as we continue to inves
new product development.
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Interest Expenst

Negative Interest Expense of $0.1 million in 20i@se from the early repayment in March 2012 oflagreasin-Rate Senior Discount Not
Early repayment of the notes resulted in a lowerage effective interest rate over the term ofrtbtes than would have applied if the ni
had been held to maturity. In prior periods, wedudee average effective interest rate as if thesiotere held to maturity in determining
amount of interest expense incurred.

Other Income (Expense)
Other Income (Expense) primarily relates to theafbf exchange rate fluctuations between the &h8.Canada. However, 2013 also inclt
the following one-time items:

* A $0.1 million gain related to an insurance setteainan:
* A $0.3 million gain related to a refund of statéesdax previously paid by

Income Tax Provision (Benefit

Dollars in thousands Year Ended December 31, Change

2013 2012 $ %
Income Tax Benefit $(32,085) $(226) $(31,859) n/m
Dollars in thousands Year Ended December 31, Change

2012 2011 $ %
Income Tax Provision (Benefit) $(226) $686 $(912) n/m

n/m - Not meaningful.

Income Tax Benefit for 2013 included a partial aske of U.S. domestic valuation allowance. Incone Benefit for 2012 was primarily relat
to the expiration of statutes of limitation appbta to our liabilities for uncertain tax positioirs certain jurisdictions. Income tax expens
2011 was attributable to the taxable income geedrat Canada and the result of changes in our taindax positions. Generally, we did
recognize U.S. income tax expense associated withirmome from continuing operations for 2013, 20422011 due to the valuati
allowance against the net deferred tax asset.

In the second quarter of 2013, we evaluated thenpial realization of our Deferred Income Tax Assebnsidering both positive and nege
evidence, including cumulative income or loss for past thregears and forecasted taxable income. As a restii®gvaluation we conclud
that, as of June 30, 2013, a majority of the axistialuation allowance on our domestic Deferredine Tax Assets was no longer requirec
of December 31, 2013, we maintain the same pos#t#othe previous quarter that the partial releds@loation allowance is still approprie
Accordingly, an income tax benefit of $38.9 milliamms recorded during 2013 related to the redudfaur existing valuation allowance.

Further there was a total of $4.4 million of Deéstrincome Tax Asset reversal related to the expiratf capital loss and certain state
operating loss carryforwards during the fourth ¢eraof 2013. Accordingly a corresponding amounvtalfiation allowance was reversed in
same quarter.

The amount of valuation allowance offsetting thempany's deferred tax assets was $12.9 million aBemfember 31, 2013. Of the tc
remaining valuation allowance, $4.1 millieelates to certain domestic loss and other cretityforwards that we may not be able to ut
primarily due to their shorter remaining carryfordgeriods. Should it be determined in the futurat tit is more likely than not that ¢
domestic Deferred Income Tax Assets will be redljzn additional valuation allowance would be redshduring the period in which suct
assessment is made. In addition, $8.8 million efrémaining valuation allowance relates to foreighoperating loss carryfowards. There |
been no material changes to our foreign operasaore December 31, 2012 and, accordingly, we maiotar existing valuation allowance
foreign Deferred Income Tax Assets in such jurisdits at December 31, 2013.

See Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financiak8tahts included in Part I, Item 8 of this repont &dditional information.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of December 31, 2013 , we had $41.0 million @Sk and Cash Equivalents, compared to $23.2 miioof December 31, 2012asl
provided by operating activities was $21.1 millifam 2013, compared to cash provided by operatiriyiies of $12.8 millionfor 2012. Wi
expect our Cash and Cash Equivalents at Decemb@0338, along with cash expected to be generated fromatipes, to be sufficient to ful
our operating and capital requirements for at leaslve months from December 31, 2013 .

The increase in cash flows from operating actigitreas primarily due to increased Net Income of @48illion for 2013, compared to N
Income of $16.9 million for 2012 and changes in operating assets and liabilities as discussedibélet income for 2013 included$%88.¢
million non-cash credit related to the reductiorthef valuation allowance recorded against our Defeincome Tax Assets.

Trade Receivables increased $3.5 million to $25I8om as of December 31, 201Zompared to $21.8 million as of December 31, 2@12 t
higher revenue within our Retail business. Daysssaltstanding ("DSO") at December 31, 20&3e 19.9 days compared to 23.7 days .
December 31, 2012. The decrease in DSO at Dece3ib@013 compared to December 31, 2012 was duepmived collections.

Inventories decreased $3.0 million to $15.8 millem of December 31, 2013ompared to $18.8 million as of December 31, 2@t&narily
due to improvements in inventory management.

Net Deferred Income Tax Assets increased $32.5amitb $30.2 million as of December 31, 2018ompared to a net liability of $2.3 milli
as of December 31, 2012, primarily due to the sdezf $38.9 milliorof existing valuation allowance during 2013 as dssed in more det
above.

Trade Payables increased $4.4 million to $37.2ionilas of December 31, 2018ompared to $32.8 million as of December 31, 2@tinarily
due to increased media expense to support the lytiaveales.

Accrued Liabilities increased $0.9 million to $9rlllion as of December 31, 20t®mpared to $8.2 million as of December 31, 201iParily
due to an increase in accrued incentive compemsatio

Cash used in investing activities for purchasesofivare and equipment was $3.6 millimn 2013 and was primarily related to implementa
of new software and hardware information systemrages and new product tooling equipment. We artieigpending $2.5 million in all
2014 for software and equipment.

Financing Arrangements

We have a Credit Agreement (the "Loan Agreementitf) Bank of the West that provides for a $15,750,8@aximum revolving secured cre
line. The line of credit is available through Ma@h, 2015 for working capital, standby letters oédit and general corporate purpo
Borrowing availability under the Loan Agreementsigbject to our compliance with certain financiaamperating covenants at the ti
borrowings are requested. Standby letters of cradier the Loan Agreement are treated as a reductithe available borrowing amount i
are subject to covenant testing.

The interest rate applicable to borrowings underitban Agreement is based on either, at our discreBank of the West's base rate, a floe
rate or LIBOR, plus an applicable margin based emain financial performance metrics. Our borrowmate was 1.67% as @fecember 3:
2013. The Loan Agreement contains customary covenamtkjding minimum fixed charge coverage ratio aederage ratio, and limitatio
on capital expenditures, mergers and acquisitiondgbtedness, liens, dispositions, dividends angstments. The Loan Agreement i
contains customary events of default. Upon an ewtdefault, the lender has the option of termimgtits credit commitment and accelera
all obligations under the Loan Agreement. Borrowsingnder the Loan Agreement are collateralized tpgtsuntially all of our assets, includ
intellectual property assets.

As of December 31, 2013 , we had no outstandingoldngs and $0.5 millioin standby letters of credit issued under the LAgreement. A
of December 31, 2013 , we were in compliance wlith financial covenants of the Loan Agreement amuragmately $15.3 millionwas
available for borrowing.

Commitments and Contingencies

For a description of our commitments and contingesyaefer to Note 15 to our Consolidated Finan8@tements in Part I, Item 8 of t
report.
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Non-Cancelable Contractual Obligations
Our operating cash flows include the effect of a@iertnoneancelable, contractual obligations. A summary oéhs obligations as
December 31, 2013, including those related todisgontinued Commercial operation, is as followst(iousands):

Payments due by period

Less than 1 More than 5
Total year 1-3 years 3-5 years years
Operating lease obligations $ 13,61¢ $ 334 $ 6,45: $ 3,15¢  $ 664
Purchase obligatior8 8,82 8,82/ — — —
Minimum royalty obligations 10C 10C — — —
Total $  22,54( $ 12,267 $ 6,45:¢ $ 3,15¢ $ 664

(1) Our purchase obligations are comprised primarilineéntory purchase commitments. Because subsiigirdibof our inventory is source
from Asia, we have long lead times and therefoexrte secure factory capacity from our vendorgiveace.

Due to uncertainty with respect to the timing diufe cash flows associated with our unrecognizedemefits at December 31, 201@&e ar
unable to make reasonably reliable estimates oftiming of any cash settlements with the respectiaing authorities. Therefo
approximately $3.6 milliomf unrecognized tax benefits, including interest panalties on uncertain tax positions, have beeluded from th
contractual table above. For further informatiaefer to Note 11, Income Taxes, to our Consolid&tiedncial Statements in Part I, Item ¢
this report.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the ordinary course of business, we enter igi@@ments that require us to indemnify counterpsgigainst thirgharty claims. These m
include: agreements with vendors and supplierseumdhich we may indemnify them against claims agsirom our use of their products
services; agreements with customers, under whiclmase indemnify them against claims arising fromithese or sale of our products; r
estate and equipment leases, under which we maminifly lessors against third party claims relatioghe use of their property; agreem
with licensees or licensors, under which we mayemdify the licensee or licensor against claimsiragisrom their use of our intellectt
property or our use of their intellectual propedpnd agreements with parties to debt arrangememtier which we may indemnify them aga
claims relating to their participation in the transons.

The nature and terms of these indemnifications ¥easn contract to contract, and generally a maximoiotigation is not stated. We hi
insurance policies that mitigate potential lossésireg from certain types of indemnifications. Basa we are unable to estimate our pote
obligation, and because management does not ettt obligations to have a material adverse effeaiur consolidated financial positi
results of operations or cash flows, no liabilitses recorded at December 31, 2013 .

SEASONALITY

We expect our sales from fitness equipment prodoctsiry seasonally. Sales are typically strongesgte first and fourth quarters, followed
the third quarter, and are generally weakest irstfend quarter. We believe that, during the spaimdj summer months, consumers tend
involved in outdoor activities, including outdookegcise, which impacts sales of indoor fitness popeint. This seasonality can hav
significant effect on our inventory levels, workingpital needs and resource utilization.

INFLATION

We do not believe that inflation had a materiakeffon our business, financial condition or resoiteperations in 2013, 2012 or 2011. Inflai
pressures do exist in countries where our contnactufacturers are based, however we have largdigatad these increases through cost
improvement measures.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

See Note 1, Significant Accounting Polices, to 6onsolidated Financial Statements in Part I, |&of this report.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk

Interest Rate Risl

Our exposure to market risk from changes in interates relates primarily to our cash and cashvedgnmts. The primary objective of «
investment activities is to preserve principal whihaximizing yields without significantly increagimisk. This is accomplished by investing
diversified investments, consisting only of investitigrade securities.

As of December 31, 2013, we held cash and caslvaguts of $41.0 million Given that cash equivalents mature within threatins or les
from the date of purchase, a decline in interegtsraver time would reduce our interest income vioutld not have a material impact on
results of operations, financial position or casiws. In addition, due to the nature of our cashiwajents, a decline in interest rates would
materially affect the fair value of our cash eqlewds.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Nautilus, Inc.
Vancouver, Washington

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Nautilus, Inc. and subsidiaries (@@ripany”) as of December 31, 20413
2012, and the related consolidated statements of dpasatcomprehensive income, shareholders' equiiycash flows for each of the th
years in the period endeDecember 31, 2013 These financial statements are the responsibiditythe Company's management.
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesaritial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on altasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetaepresent fairly, in all material respects, thwarcial position of Nautilus, Inc. a
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 2Gi#] the results of their operations and theih dksvs for each of the three years in the pe
ended December 31, 2013, in conformity with actiogrprinciples generally accepted in the Unitedt& of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@united States), the Compar
internal control over financial reporting as of @eter 31, 2013 , based on the criteria establighéaternal Control-Integrated Framework
(1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrtee Treadway Commission, and our report datguardary 27, 2014 expresse
an unqualified opinion on the Company's internaitoal over financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Portland, Oregon
February 27, 2014
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables, net
Inventories, net
Prepaids and other current assets
Income taxes receivable
Short-term notes receivable
Deferred income tax assets

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net
Long-term deferred income tax assets
Other assets

Total assets

NAUTILUS, INC.

(In thousands)

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Trade payables
Accrued liabilities
Warranty obligations, current portion
Deferred income tax liabilities

Total current liabilities
Warranty obligations, non-current
Income taxes payable, non-current
Deferred income tax liabilities, non-current
Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)
Shareholders' equity:

Common stock - no par value, 75,000 shares autthril,162 and 30,924 shares issued and outsta

Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents.
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As of December 31,

2013 2012
40,97¢ $ 23,20
25,33 21,76
15,82 18,78

6,92 5,75(
80 101

— 82
4,441 19z
93,58 69,88
8,49¢ 6,13¢
2,74( 2,94(
12,61 14,66¢
25,72t 23¢
401 441

143560 $ 9431

37,190 $ 32,75
9,12: 8,171
1,61( 2,27¢

— 1,27¢
47,92t 44,47
28 214
2,57 2,812
— 1,48
1,47: 1,99¢

52,00: 50,98t
6,76¢ 6,10¢

84,55 36,59

244 62t
91,56t 43,32¢

143560 $ 94,31




NAUTILUS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating expenses:

Selling and marketing

General and administrative

Research and development

Total operating expenses
Operating income

Other income (expense):

Interest income

Interest expense

Other

Total other income (expense)

Income from continuing operations before income$ax
Income tax provision (benefit)
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations:

Income (loss) from discontinued operations befoowime taxes

Income tax provision (benefit) of discontinued @iEms

Income (loss) from discontinued operations

Net income

Basic income per share from continuing operations
Basic income (loss) per share from discontinuedaifmns
Basic net income per share

Diluted income per share from continuing operation
Diluted income (loss) per share from discontinapdrations
Diluted net income per share
Shares used in per share calculations:
Basic

Diluted

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financa¢®ents.
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Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
218,80 $ 19392t $ 180,41
112,32 102,88 101,95:
106,47 91,03 78,45¢
66,48t 58,61 54,49
18,70¢ 17,66¢ 17,14:
5,56: 4,16° 3,22:
90,75¢ 80,44 74,86(
15,72« 10,58¢ 3,59¢
14 18 65
(36) 56 (466)
337 (24¢6) (11)
31E (172) (412)
16,03¢ 10,41¢ 3,187
(32,089 (226) 68€
48,12: 10,64: 2,501
(55¢) 6,007 (1,065)
(389) (234 16
(170) 6,241 (1,081)
4795 $ 16,88. $ 1,4
158 $ 03¢ $  0.0¢
(0.01) 0.21 (0.09)
154 $ 0558 $ 0.0t
152 $ 03¢ $  0.0¢
(0.0) 0.21 (0.09)
152 $ 055 $  0.0¢
31,07: 30,85 30,74¢
31,45 30,97 30,77¢




NAUTILUS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Net income $ 47,95¢ $ 16,88 $ 1,42(
Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation, net of income taxn@dit)
expense of $20, $(9) and $8 (381) (83) (575)
Comprehensive income $ 4757 $§ 1680 84c

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents.
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NAUTILUS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In thousands)

Accumulated

Balances at January 1, 2011
Net income

Foreign currency translation adjustment,
net of income tax expense of $8

Stock-based compensation expense

Common stock issued under equity
compensation plan

Balances at December 31, 2011
Net income

Foreign currency translation
adjustment, including income tax
benefit of $9

Reclassification of foreign currency
translation gains to income upon

substantial liquidation of subsidiaries

Stock-based compensation expense

Common stock issued under equity
compensation plan

Balances at December 31, 2012
Net income

Foreign currency translation adjustment,
net of income tax expense of $20

Stock-based compensation expense

Common stock issued under equity
compensation plan

Tax deficiency related to stock-based awar

Balances at December 31, 2013

Common Stock Other Total
Retained Comprehensive Shareholders'

Shares Amount Earnings Income Equity
30,74« $ 5,051 18,29 $ 7,45 $ 30,79¢
— — 1,42( — 1,42(
— — — (575) (575)
— 30¢€ — — 30€
3 3 — — 3
30,74, 5,36( 19,71t 6,87¢ 31,95:
— — 16,88: — 16,88:
— — — 83 (83
— — — (6,170 (6,170
— 63C — — 63C
177 113 — — 118
30,92« 6,10: 36,59¢ 62t 43,32¢
— — 47,95¢ — 47,95¢
— — — (381) (381)
— 454 — — 454
23¢€ 357 — — 357
(145) — — (145)
31,16: $ 6,76¢ 84,55: $ 244 $ 91,56¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financé®ents.




NAUTILUS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities:
Income from continuing operations $ 48,12« $ 10,64: $ 2,501
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (270 6,241 (1,08))
Net income 47,95¢ 16,88: 1,42(
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigenl by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 3,34¢ 3,26¢ 3,81¢
Bad debt expense (reduction) 58¢ (13 15€
Inventory lower-of-cost-or-market adjustments 557 40z 21C
Stock-based compensation expense 454 63C 30¢€
(Gain) loss on asset disposals 2 (30 78
Reduction of previously estimated asset disposal lo — — 947
Deferred income taxes, net of valuation allowances (32,819 14t 431
Excess tax deficiency related to stock-based awards 14& — —
Reclassification of foreign currency translatiofingao income upon
substantial liquidation of subsidiaries — (6,170 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade receivables (4,417) 1,92¢ (4,58(0)
Inventories 2,38¢ (7,579 (1,287
Prepaids and other current assets (1,179 (1,319 1,115
Income taxes receivable (92) 464 (127)
Trade payables 4,48 4,18¢ 4,041
Accrued liabilities, including warranty obligations (337) 3 (35
Net cash provided by operating activities 21,08¢ 12,81: 4,59¢
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations 11€ 41C 1,30:
Proceeds from other asset sales 5 6 —
Purchases of software and equipment (3,590 (2,447) (2,506
Net decrease in restricted cash — — 351
Net cash used in investing activities (3,469 (2,026) (852)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of long-term borrowings — (5,000 —
Financing costs — — (35)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 357 11z 3
Excess tax expense related to stock-based awards (14%) — —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 212 (4,88%) (32
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and caslueglents (57) (120) (583)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 17,77 5,78( 3,131
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 23,20: 17,427 14,29¢
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 40,97¢ $ 23,200 % 17,42;
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash (paid) refunded for income taxes, net $ (450 % 27 % 22
Cash paid for interest $ (36 % (5449 % —




See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financa¢®ents.
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NAUTILUS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Business
Nautilus was founded in 1986 and incorporated @Skate of Washington in 1993. Our headquarteribaeged in Vancouver, Washingtc

We are committed to providing innovative, qualibiigtions to help people achieve a fit and healtfgstyle. Our principal business activit
include designing, developing, sourcing and mankethigh-quality cardio and strength fitness produmtdrelated accessories for consu
use, primarily in the United States and Canada. @oducts are sold under some of the nmestgnized brand names in the fitness indu
Nautilus®, Bowflex®, Schwinn®, Schwinn Fitness™ and Univergal

We market our products through two distinct disttibn channels, Direct and Retail, which we considebe separate business segments
Direct business offers products directly to consumersutiinctelevision advertising, catalogs and the Ireer@urRetail business offers o
products through a network of independent retaihganies with stores and websites located in théedrStates and internationally. We
derive a portion of our revenue from the licensdfigur brands and intellectual property.

Basis of Presentatiol

The accompanying consolidated financial statembat® been prepared in accordance with accountiimgiples generally accepted in
United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) and relateNautilus, Inc. and its subsidiaries, all of whante whollyewned, directly or indirectl
Intercompany transactions and balances have baaimated in consolidation.

Discontinued Operation:

Results from discontinued operations relate todibposal of our former Commercial business, whiebam in 2009 and was completed in A
2011. We reached substantial completion of assgeidiation at December 31, 2012. However, we coastitu have legal and account
expenses as we work with authorities on final disteagion of each entity and product liability exiges associated with product previously
into the Commercial channel.

Results of operations and certain assets assodidtiedhe commercial business have been presentdteiconsolidated financial statement
discontinued operations for all periods presented.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith U.S. GAAP requires management to make et and assumptions that affect
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenard, expenses and the disclosure of contingentsaarédtliabilities in the financial stateme
Our most significant estimates relate to the foltayy

* Revenue recognitio

+ Sales discounts and allowant

e Goodwill and other longerm asset valuatic

e Product warranty obligatior

» Valuation of excess and obsolete invent

» Litigation and loss contingencis

» Deferred tax assets and the related valuation alhoe; an

» Unrecognized tax benefi

Actual results could differ from our estimates.

Concentrations

Financial instruments that potentially subject asoncentrations of credit risk consist principatfycash held in bank accounts in exces
federallyinsured limits and trade receivables. Trade ret#émare generally unsecured and therefore calledt affected by the econor
conditions in each of our principal markets.

We rely on thirdparty contract manufacturers in Asia for substégtel of our products and for certain product ar@gring support. Busine
operations could be disrupted by natural disastéficulties in transporting products from nahS. suppliers, as well as political, socia
economic instability in the countries where contraa@nufacturers or their vendors or customers coinbusiness. While any such cont
manufacturing arrangement could be replaced owag,tthe temporary loss of the services of any pyneantract manufacturer could de
product shipments and cause a significant disropti@ur operations.
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We derive a significant portion of our Net Salemfra small number of our Retail customers. A Iddsusiness from one or more of these |
customers, if not replaced with new business, waddatively affect our operating results and cdstvd. In 2013, 2012 and 201bne
customer accounted for more than 10% , but less1B& , of our Net Sales.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
All highly liquid investments with maturities ofidse months or less at purchase are considereddadeequivalents. As @fecember 31, 20:
and 2012 , cash and cash equivalents consisteélgmf cash.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or migriwith cost determined based on the first-instfiut method. We establish invent
allowances for excess, slaweving and obsolete inventory based on inventorglie expected product life and forecasted sate®ritories a
written down to market value based on historicahded, competitive factors, changes in technologymnduct lifecycles.

Property, Plant and Equipmer

Property, plant and equipment is stated at costphaccumulated depreciation. Improvements orepeients which add new functionality
significantly extend the life of an asset are caj@eéd. Expenditures for maintenance and repagseapensed as incurred. The cost of a
retired, or otherwise disposed of, and the relateclmulated depreciation, are removed from thewadsoat the time of disposal. Gains
losses resulting from asset sales and dispositiomsecognized in the period in which assets apodied. Depreciation is recognized, usin
straightline method, over the lesser of the estimated lifieés of the assets or, in the case of leaselmopifovements, the lease term, incluc
renewal periods if we expect to exercise our reh@ptons. Depreciation on computer equipment, rivaarly and equipment and furniture i
fixtures is determined based on estimated usefes)iwhich generally range from three -to- fivergea

Goodwill

Goodwill consists of the excess of acquisition saster the fair values of net assets acquired #inkess combinations. We review goodwill
impairment in the fourth quarter of each year at@mvevents or changes in circumstances indicatattbacarrying amount may be impait
For this purpose, goodwill is evaluated at the riépg unit level. Our goodwill is an asset of ouirdt reporting unit. We performec
gualitative assessment of goodwill in the fourtlaugers of 2013, 2012 and 2011 and concluded thetroistances did not more likely than
indicate an impairment had occurred. For furth&srimation regarding goodwill, see Note 6, Goodwiill.

Historically, our policy was to perform the annirmpairment test for goodwill at October 31 of ea@ar, or more frequently if impairme
indicators arose. During the fourth quarter of 2048 changed the date of our annual goodwill impaint test to October 1 to better align \
our annual and lonterm planning and budgeting process. Accordingly bslieve this change in accounting principle &fgnable. The chan
did not delay, accelerate, or avoid an impairmératrge. This change in the annual goodwill impairntesting date was applied prospecti
beginning on October 1, 2013 as we determinedithais impracticable to objectively determine podgel cash flows and related valua
estimates that would have been used as of eactb€&ctoof prior reporting periods without the usénimfdsight.

Other Intangible Assets
Finitedived intangible assets, primarily acquired pateantsl patent rights, are stated at cost, net ofraslated amortization. We recogn
amortization expense for our finite-lived intangilalssets on a straight-line basis over the estimeseful lives.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets consist of aceditrademarks. Indefinitésed intangible assets are stated at cost andhareamortizec
instead, they are tested for impairment at leastially. We review our acquired trademarks for impaint in the fourth quarter of eachy
and when events or changes in circumstances imdibat the assets may be impaired. The fair valiedemarks is estimated using the r¢
from royalty approach, a standard form of discodntash flow analysis used in the valuation of tradkks. If the carrying amount
trademarks exceeds the estimated fair value, voelledd impairment as the excess of carrying amovet the estimate of fair value. We te:
our acquired trademarks for impairment in the fowqtiarters of 2013, 2012 and 2011 and determinadnit impairment was indicated. |
further information regarding other intangible dsseee Note 7, Other Intangible Assets.

Impairment of Lon¢-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, including property, plant andipment and finitdived intangible assets, are evaluated for impaitmehen events
circumstances indicate the carrying value may hmained. When such an event or condition occursestenates the future undiscounted «
flows to be derived from the use and eventual dikjpm of the asset to determine whether a potentia
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impairment exists. If the carrying value exceedsrested future undiscounted cash flows, we recorgdairment expense to reduce the cart
value of the asset to its estimated fair valueimjpairment charges were recorded in 2013, 2012Dbi 2

Revenue Recognitio

Direct and Retail product sales and shipping reesrare recorded when products are shipped angifiees to customers. In most instal
Retail sales to customers are made pursuant ttea santract that provides for transfer of botte ténd risk of loss to the customer upon
delivery to the carrier. For Direct sales, reveisigenerally recognized when products are shipRedenue is recognized net of applici
sales incentives, such as promotional discounigtes and return allowances. We estimate the reviempact of incentive programs baset
the planned duration of the program and histogsalerience.

Many Direct business customers finance their pugesahrough a thirgarty credit provider, for which we pay a commissiw financing fee 1
the credit provider. Revenue for such transactisiecognized based on the sales price chargduetoustomer and the related commissic
financing fee is included in Selling and Marketexpense.

Sales Discounts and Returns Allowan

Product sales and shipping revenues are reporteaf peomotional discounts and return allowance® &8timate the revenue impact of r
sales incentive programs based on the plannedialuraftthe program and historical experience. & &mount of sales incentives is reasor
estimable, the impact of such incentives is reabraethe later of the time the customer is notifiédhe sales incentive or the time of the ¢
We estimate our liability for product returns basadhistorical experience and record the expedbéidation as a reduction of revenue. If ac
return costs differ from previous estimates, theant of the liability and corresponding revenue adgisted in the period in which such ¢
occur. Activity in our sales discounts and retusliswance was as follows (in thousands):

2013 2012 2011
Balance, January 1 $ 499 $ 511 $ 4,69
Charges to reserve 13,34t 11,73( 10,73t
Reductions for sales discounts and retur (14,229 (11,859 (20,319
Balance, December 31 $ 4106 $ 499 $ 511

Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Goreental Authorities
Taxes collected from customers and remitted to gowental authorities are recorded on a net basigacluded from revenue.

Shipping and Handling Fee!
Shipping and handling fees billed to customersracerded gross and included in both revenue andofesles.

Cost of Sales

Cost of Sales primarily consists of: inventory spstoyalties paid to third parties; employment awtupancy costs of warehouse
distribution facilities, including depreciation ohprovements and equipment; transportation expemseduct warranty expenses; distribu
information systems expenses; and allocated expdasshared administrative functions.

Product Warranty Obligations

Our products carry limited, defined warranties defects in materials or workmanship which, accaydimtheir terms, generally obligate u:
pay the costs of supplying and shipping replacenpants to customers and, in certain instances, fpayabor and other costs to sen
products. Outstanding product warranty periods edingm sixtydays to, in limited circumstances, the lifetimeceftain product componer
We record a liability at the time of sale for thetimated costs of fulfilling future warranty claimié necessary, we adjust the liability
specific warrantyrelated matters when they become known and ar@mably estimable. Estimated warranty expense isdec in Cost ¢
Sales, based on historical warranty claim expedera available product quality data. Warranty egpds affected by the performance of
products, significant manufacturing or design defemt discovered until after the product is dealbebto the customer, product failure rates,
higher or lower than expected repair costs. If amtly expense differs from previous estimates, arifumstances change such that
assumptions inherent in previous estimates aremger valid, the amount of product Warranty Obiigas is adjusted accordingly.

Litigation and Loss Contingencie

From time to time, we may be involved in variouairtls, lawsuits and other proceedings. These leghtax proceedings involve uncertaint
to the eventual outcomes and losses which may &leed when one or more future events occur ortéaibccur. We record expenses
litigation and loss contingencies as a compone@aieral and Administrative expense when it is gbdd that a liability has been incurred
the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimdtedn a loss contingency is not both probable atichable, we do not establish an acci
liability. However, if the loss (or an additionalsls in excess of the accrual)
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is at least a reasonable possibility and matehiah we disclose an estimate of the possible Iosamge of loss, if such estimate can be mac
disclose that an estimate cannot be made.

Advertising and Promotior

We expense our advertising and promotion costhi@sried. Production costs of television advertistagnmercials are recorded as pre
expenses until the initial broadcast, at which tisueh costs are expensed. Advertising and promatasts are included in Selling ¢
Marketing expenses. Total advertising and promogapenses were $35.8 million , $30.9 million an®.$2million for the years end:
December 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , respectivalgpafd advertising and promotion costs were $2.Riomiand $1.3 millionas o
December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Research and Developme

Internal research and development costs, whichgriiynconsist of salaries and wages, employee litsnekpenditures for materials, and 1
to use licensed technologies, are expensed asréacurhird party research and development costprfoducts under development or be
researched, if any, are expensed as the contractédis performed.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes based on the assdiadnility method, whereby deferred tax assets aatillties are recognized for the future
consequences attributable to differences betweefiirtancial statement carrying amounts of existisgets and liabilities and their respec
tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilitiesrez@sured using the enacted tax rates expectedinoeffect when the temporary differences
expected to be included, as income or expenseéiarapplicable tax return. The effect of a changéainrates on deferred tax assets
liabilities is recognized in the period of the etmaent. Valuation allowances are provided againfrded income tax assets if we determine
more likely than not that such assets will not éaized.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits
We recognize a tax benefit from an uncertain tagitmm when it is more likely than not that the pios will be sustained based on
technical merits of the position upon examinatianjuding resolutions of any related appeals dagdition.

Foreign Currency Translation

We translate the accounts of our rdrs. subsidiaries into U.S. dollars as follows: aewes, expenses, gains and losses are transl
weightedaverage exchange rates during the year; and aasdtdiabilities are translated at the exchange ocamethe balance sheet di
Translation gains and losses are reported in ous@ilated Balance Sheets as a component of AcetetiDther Comprehensive Income
the fourth quarter of 2012, we substantially cortgalethe liquidation of our investment in foreigrbsigdiaries formerly associated with
Commercial business. As a result, an accumulatetsiation adjustment of $6.2 milliomas removed from accumulated other comprehe
income and recognized as a gain of the discontiopedations.

Gains and losses arising from foreign currencysaations, including transactions between us anchooitJ.S. subsidiaries, are recorded
component of other income (expense) in our Conatdidl Statements of Operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying values of Cash and Cash Equivalentslél Receivables, Prepaid and Other Current AsSktsiTerm Notes Receivable, Tre
Payables and Accrued Liabilities approximate failue due to their short maturities.

We did not have any financial instruments that wesarded at fair value on a recurring basis atelbder 31, 2013 or 2012.

Stock-Based Compensation

We recognize stock-based compensation expenseswaight-line basis over the applicable vestingquehased on the gradate fair value ¢
the award. To the extent a stdsfised award is subject to performance conditidres amount of expense recorded in a given perioany
reflects our assessment of the probability of adchgethe performance targets.

Fair value of stock options is estimated usingBleck-ScholesMerton option valuation model; fair value of perfance share unit award:
estimated using the binomial valuation model; Yailue of restricted stock unit awards is basecherctosing market price on the day prece
the grant.

Net Income Per Shar

Basic per share amounts were computed using thghteei average number of common shares outstanihded per share amounts w
calculated using the number of basic weighted @eeshares outstanding increased by dilutive paeocdimmon shares related to stdmse!
awards, as determined by the treasury stock method.
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Related Party Transaction

In September 2010 , we entered into an agreemedmrow $5.0 millionfrom certain entities under common control of Soenle Investor
GP, LLC and its affiliates (collectively “SherboijeAt the time, Sherborne was our largest sharehaaer was controlled by Edward
Bramson, our former Chairman and Chief Executivéc®f, and Craig L. McKibben, a former member of &oard of Directors. We incurr
interest expense of $0.4 million and $0.1 milliwith respect to such debt in 2011 and 2010, resmdygt We repaid all amounts outstanc
with respect to such debt in March 2012 and, adeghg, both the outstanding principal balance ambant of accrued interest expense ¢
December 31, 2013 and 2012 were zero .

New Accounting Pronouncemen

ASU 201:-02

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumutai®ther Comprehensi
Income.” Under ASU 20182, an entity is required to provide informationoab the amounts reclassified out of Accumulated et
Comprehensive Income (“AOCI)y component. In addition, an entity is requiregtesent, either on the face of the financial statets or i
the notes, significant amounts reclassified olAOLCI by the respective line items of net income;, dnly if the amount reclassified is requi
to be reclassified in its entirety in the same répg period. For amounts that are not requiretiéaeclassified in their entirety to net inco
an entity is required to cross-reference to otligslosures that provide additional details aboaséhamounts. The adoption of ASU 2@iin
January 2013 did not have any impact on our firnpmsition, results of operations or cash flows.

ASU 201:-11

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-1Rrésentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit Wh&leaOperating Loss Carryforward
Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Egis ASU 201311 amends the guidance related to the presentafiomrecognized te
benefits and allows for the reduction of a defert@x asset for a net operating loss (“NOIcgrryforward whenever the NOL or tax cr
carryforward would be available to reduce the addél taxable income or tax due if the tax positismisallowed. ASU 20134 is effectiv:
for annual and interim periods for fiscal yearsibhamg after December 15, 2013, and early adopgsgoermitted. Since ASU 2018t relate
only to the presentation of unrecognized tax bésefie do not expect our adoption of ASU 2a13in January 2014 will have a material ef
on our financial position, results of operationsash flows.

(2) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On September 25, 2009, in light of continuing ofiagalosses in our Commercial business and in otléocus exclusively on managing
Direct and Retail businesses, we committed to a fuathe complete divestiture of our Commerciasiness, which qualified for held-faale
accounting treatment. The Commercial business ésgmted as Discontinued Operations in our Conde@xetsolidated Statements
Operations for all periods.

The disposal of the Commercial business assetscaapleted in April 2011. We reached substantial gletion of asset liquidation
December 2012. However, we continue to have legdlaccounting expenses as we work with authordiedinal deregistration of certe
European entities and product liability expensesmeisted with product previously sold into the Coenaml channel. There was no reve
related to the Commercial business for the yeade@December 31, 2013 or 2012.

Following is a summary of certain financial infortioa regarding the Commercial business (in thousand

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Revenue $ — 3 — 9 8€
Loss from discontinued operations $ (559 $ (169 $ (2,29)
Gain on disposal activities — — 28C
(559 (169) (2,01))

Reclassification of foreign currency translatioringao income
upon substantial liquidation of subsidiaries — 6,17( —
Reduction of previously-estimated disposal loss — — 94¢
Income tax benefit (expense) 38¢ 234 (1€)
Total income (loss) from discontinued operations $ (179 $ 6241 $ (1,08)
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The following table summarizes liabilities for egists related to discontinued operations, includestccrued Liabilities and Other Longerm
Liabilities in our Condensed Consolidated Balankeess (in thousands):

Facilities Severance anc
Leases Benefits
Balance as of January 1, 2011 $ 2,16C $ 47€
Adjustments 217 17¢
Payments (44¢) (47€)
Balance as of December 31, 2011 1,92¢ 17t
Adjustments (390) —
Payments (421) (17%)
Balance as of December 31, 2012 1,11¢ —
Payments (287) —
Balance as of December 31,2013  $ 831 $ —

We expect the lease obligations to be paid outtin2016 .
(3) TRADE RECEIVABLES

Changes in our allowance for doubtful trade reddemwere as follows (in thousands):

2013 2012 2011
Balance, January 1 $ 92 % 30C $ 301
Charges to (reversals of) bad debt expense  58¢ (13 15€
Writeoffs, net of recoveries (628) (1949) (157)
Balance, December 31 $ 58§ 93 §  30cC

(4) INVENTORIES

Inventories, net, consisted of the following (ilmtsands):

December 31,

2013 2012
Finished goods $ 14,25¢ $ 17,14¢
Parts and components 1,56¢ 1,63¢

$ 15,82: $ 18,78:
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(5) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the¥adhg (in thousands):

Estimated December 31,
Useful Life
(in years) 2013 2012
Leasehold improvements 5to 20 $ 2,86¢ $ 2,86:
Computer equipment 3t05 35,55¢ 36,107
Machinery and equipment 3to5 5,64¢ 5,35¢
Furniture and fixtures 5 68¢ 87C
Work in progress N/A 4,281 2,08(
Total cost 49,04( 47,27¢
Accumulated depreciation (40,547) (41,142
$ 8,49¢ $ 6,13¢

Work in progress includes internal use softwaresttgyment and production tooling construction ingress.

Depreciation expense was as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2012
1,19¢ $

2013
125« $

2011
1,64¢

Depreciation expense$
(6) GOODWILL

All goodwill is assigned to our Direct reportingituiThe rollforward of Goodwill was as follows (thousands):

Balance, December 31, 2010 $ 2,931
Currency exchange rate adjustmer (58)
Balance, December 31, 2011 2,87:
Currency exchange rate adjustmer 67
Balance, December 31, 2012 2,94(
Currency exchange rate adjustmer (200
Balance, December 31, 2013 $§ 2,74

(7) OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consisted of the following (ioubands):

Estimated December 31,
Useful Life
(in years) 2013 2012
Indefinite life trademarks N/A $ 9,052 $ 9,052
Patents 8 tol6 18,15¢ 18,15«
27,20¢t 27,20t
Accumulated amortization - patents (14,59) (12,540
$ 12,61¢ $ 14,66¢
Amortization expense was as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
Amortization expense$ 2,05 $ 2,05 $ 2,05¢
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Future amortization of patents is as follows (iaukands):

2014 $ 2,04(
2015 82¢
2016 43C
2017 14z
2018 65
Thereafter 57

$ 3,56:

(8) ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities consisted of the following (inousands):

December 31,

2013 2012
Payroll and related liabilities $ 424, $ 3,321
Other 4,87¢ 4,844

$ 9,12: $ 8,171

(9) PRODUCT WARRANTIES

Changes in our product warranty obligations wertbbgws (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Balance, January 1 $ 2492 $ 2017 $ 3,93
Accruals 1,097 2,61t 1,78¢
Adjustments (18€) (170 (660)
Payments (1,765 (1,970 (3,047

Balance, December31 $ 1,63t $ 2,49: § 2,01i

Product warranty payments in 2011 primarily relatedetained obligations of our former Commerciabkiness. Product warranty liabil
adjustments in 2011 primarily related to the agssignt of certain outstanding Commercial warrantyigattions to the buyer of cert:
components of the Commercial business.

(10) BORROWINGS

Line of Credit

We have a Credit Agreement (the "Loan Agreemenith Bank of the West that provides for a $15,750,6@ximum revolving secured cre
line. The line of credit is available through Ma&h, 2015 for working capital, standby letters of credit and gah&orporate purpost
Borrowing availability under the Loan Agreementsisbject to our compliance with certain financiabamperating covenants at the ti
borrowings are requested. Standby letters of credier the Loan Agreement are treated as a reducfithe available borrowing amount :
are subject to covenant testing.

The interest rate applicable to borrowings underitban Agreement is based on either, at our discreBank of the West's base rate, a floz
rate or LIBOR, plus an applicable margin based emain financial performance metrics. Our borrowiate was 1.67%s of December 3
2013. The Loan Agreement contains customary couwenartiuding minimum fixed charge coverage ratid éeverage ratio, and limitations
capital expenditures, mergers and acquisitionghtetiness, liens, dispositions, dividends and tnvexsts. The Loan Agreement also cont
customary events of default. Upon an event of deféle lender has the option of terminating itedit commitment and accelerating
obligations under the Loan Agreement. Borrowingdarrthe Loan Agreement are collateralized by sultisiéy all of our assets, includil
intellectual property assets.
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As of December 31, 2013 , we had no outstandingoldngs and $0.5 millioin standby letters of credit issued under the LAgreement. A
of December 31, 2013 , we were in compliance wlhth financial covenants of the Loan Agreement argragmately $15.3 millionwas
available for borrowing.

Sherborne Note Payabl

On September 3, 2010, we entered into a Note Psechagreement (the “Purchase Agreememi)h certain entities (collectively, t
“Sherborne Purchasers”) under common control ofri8iree Investors GP, LLC and its affiliates (colieely “Sherborne”).Sherborne wz
formerly our largest shareholder and is controlbgdEdward J. Bramson, our former Chairman and Chiagcutive Officer, and Craig
McKibben, a former member of our Board of Directors

Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, we issue@ t8hhrborne Purchasers $6.1 millioraggregate principal amount at maturity of Insiee
Rate Senior Discount Notes (the “Notes”). The Ndtad an original principal amount totaling $5.0lmil and an original maturity date
December 31, 2012. On March 12, 2012, the matdéie of the Notes was automatically extended uwedeiain terms of the Purchi
Agreement to May 2, 2013.

On July 19, 2011, beneficial interest in the Notes assigned by the Sherborne Purchasersapaco their respective investors in the ma
permitted by the Purchase Agreement. Such assignwasimade in connection with the resignation os#ts. Bramson and McKibben fr
their respective positions with Nautilus on May 2611, and the subsequent pro-rata distributiondstain Sherborneffiliated entities to the
respective investors of our common stock ownedua €ntities.

We repaid all amounts outstanding under the Noteslarch 30, 2012. If all of the Notes were paidtba original maturity date, the effect
rate of interest over the term of the Purchase ément would have been approximately 8.3& annum, which was the rate at which inte
expense was accrued in periods preceding the rep#yaate. The actual effective rate of interesiugh the repayment date was approximi
6.4% per annum.
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(11) INCOME TAXES

Income Tax Provisior
Income from continuing operations before incomesawas as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
United States $ 15,38¢ $ 10,02 $ 2,87¢
Non-U.S. 658 391 311
$ 16,03¢ $ 10,41¢ $ 3,18

Income tax (benefit) expense from continuing openatwas as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Current:

U.S. federal $ 541 % (579 % 172
U.S. state 56 53 26
Non-U.S. (12 15E 77
Total current 58t (37)) 27¢

Deferred:
U.S. federal (29,557 177 314
U.S. state (3,370 17 27
Non-U.S. 252 (49 70
Total deferred (32,670) 14& 411
$ (32,08) % 22¢) $ 68€

Following is a reconciliation of the U.S. statutdegleral income tax rate with our effective incorae rate for continuing operations:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
U.S. statutory income tax rate 35.(% 35.C% 35.(%
State tax, net of U.S. federal tax benefit 2.9 1.1 5.2
Non-U.S. income taxes 1.2 — 2.1
Nondeductible operating expenses (0.4 0.4 (1.9
Research and development credit (0.7) — (2.6
Change in deferred tax measurement rate 0.2 0.1 (0.3
Change in uncertain tax positions 2.2 (6.5 13.C
Expiration of capital loss carryforward 26.€ — —
Change in valuation allowance (267.¢) (32.3 (29.0
Other 0.2 — (0.7
Effective income tax rate (200.1)% (2.9% 215 %
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Deferred Income Taxe
Individually significant components of Deferred émse Tax Assets (Liabilities) were as follows (imglsands):

December 31

2013 2012
Deferred Income Tax Assets:

Accrued liabilities $ 323C % 3,31¢
Allowance for doubtful accounts 20 21
Inventory valuation 312 382
Capitalized indirect inventory costs 15¢ 207
Stock-based compensation expense 37¢ 612
Net operating loss carryforward 35,63¢ 40,54(
Capital loss carryforward — 4,31¢
Basis difference on long-lived assets 4,417 5,78:
Credit carryforward 3,42 3,08¢
Other 332 4738
Gross Deferred Income Tax Assets 47,89¢ 58,731
Valuation allowance (12,944 (57,230)
Deferred Income Tax Assets, net of valuation allogea 34,95 1,507

Deferred Income Tax Liabilities:
Prepaid advertising (793 (381)
Other prepaids (592) (320)
Basis difference on long-lived assets (2,939 (2,67¢)
Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries 77 (13€)
Other (28¢) (319
Deferred Income Tax Liabilities (4,789 (3,839

Net Deferred Income Tax Asset

(Liability) $ 30166 $ (2,32)

Our Net Deferred Income Tax Asset (Liability) wasarded on our Consolidated Balance Sheets asvo(lim thousands):

December 31,

2013 2012
Current Deferred Income Tax Assets $ 4,441 $ 193
Current Deferred Income Tax Liabilities — 1,279
Long-Term Deferred Income Tax Assets 25,72¢ 23¢
Non-Current Deferred Income Tax Liabilities — (1,489
Net Deferred Income Tax Asst
(Liability) $ 30,166 $ (2,32)

As a result of certain realization requirement®\8IC 718, the table of deferred tax assets anditiabishown above does not include cel
deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2013, andnfileer 31, 2012, that arose directly from tax dédnos related to equity compensa
greater than compensation recognized for finarrejpbrting. Equity will be increased by $0.3 milligrand when such deferred tax asset:
ultimately realized. We use tax law ordering whetednining when excess tax benefits have beerzeshli

In the second quarter of 2013, we evaluated thenpial realization of our Deferred Income Tax Assebnsidering both positive and nege
evidence, including cumulative income or loss for past thregears and forecasted taxable income. As a restii®evaluation we conclud
that, as of June 30, 2013, a majority of the axistialuation allowance on our domestic Deferredine Tax Assets was no longer requirec
of December 31, 2013, we maintain the same pos#t#othe previous quarter that the partial releds@loation allowance is still approprie
Accordingly, an income tax benefit of $38.9 milliamms recorded during 2013 related to the redudifaur existing valuation allowance.
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Further there was a total of $4.4 millioh Deferred Income Tax Asset reversal related oedkpiration of capital loss and certain state
operating loss carryforwards during the fourth ¢graof 2013. Accordingly a corresponding amounvtalfiation allowance was reversed in
same quarter.

Evaluating the need for, and amount of, a valuasitmwance for deferred tax assets often requigrsfeeant judgment and extensive anal
of all available evidence on a jurisdiction-Juyisdiction basis. Such judgments require us terpret existing tax law and other publis
guidance as applied to our circumstances. As gdhi® assessment, we consider both positive agdtive evidence. The weight given to
potential effect of positive and negative evidemuest be commensurate with the extent to which ttength of the evidence can be objecti
verified. We generally consider the following, lare not limited to, objectively verified evidenae determine the likelihood of realization
the deferred tax assets:

e Our current financial position and our histoticesults of operations for recent years. We gdlyecansider cumulative préax losse
in the threeyear period ending with the current quarter to igaiicant negative evidence regarding our futurefipability. A patterr
of objectivelymeasured recent financial reporting losses is heasdighted as a source of negative evidence. Eurthe also consid
the historical and current financial trends in theent years.

e Sources of taxable income of the appropriate charaEuture realization of deferred tax assetseigeddent on projected taxa
income of the appropriate character from our caitig operations. Future reversals of existing terapodifferences are heavily-
weighted sources of objectively verifiable positeeidence. Projections of future taxable incomelwesiee of reversing tempore
differences are a source of positive evidence ovitgn the projections are combined with a historyreafent profits and curre
financial trends and can be reasonably estimated.

e Carryback and carryforward periods available. Tdmglcarryback and carryforward periods permittedenrthe tax law are objective
verified positive evidence.

e Tax planning strategies. Tax planning strateges be, depending on their nature, heawigighted sources of objectively verifia
positive evidence when the strategies are availafdiecan be reasonably executed. We consider aaxiplg strategies only if they i
feasible and justifiable considering our currenemions and our strategic plan. Tax planning egiies, if executed, may accele
the recovery of a deferred tax asset so the tagflhari the deferred tax asset can be carried back.

During 2008, we determined that it was no longeranlikely than not that the tax benefits from théstng U.S. deferred tax assets woulc
realized due to the substantial amount of the catiue accounting losses realized in the recentsygathe U.S. and the large taxable lo
incurred in the U.S. in 2007 and 2008. Accordinglg, established a full valuation allowance agamstU.S. net deferred tax assets in 2008.

Each quarter, we assess the total weight of pesdivd negative evidence anderealuate whether any adjustments or release ajradiny
portion of valuation allowance is appropriate. lr assessment during the second quarter of 2018eanly weighted the positive evidenct
1) cumulative profits realized in recent years comal with the upward financial trends of currentipgs; and 2) future realization of 1
existing U.S. deferred tax assets. Given our reeptoved financial performance along with the airs#d cumulative accounting profit,
projected a positive forecasted taxable incoméénU.S. during the second quarter of 2013. Accaiglirbased on our review of the objec
evidence and our detailed analysis during the stgaarter of 2013, we determined that a portioawfU.S. domestic valuation allowance
no longer required.

Of the remaining valuation allowance, $4.1 millicrlates to certain domestic loss and other credityforwards that we may not be ablt
utilize primarily due to their shorter remainingigdorward periods and $8.8 million relates to igrenet operating loss carryfowards. Shou
be determined in the future that it is more likégn not that our domestic Deferred Income Tax &ssadll be realized, an additional valuat
allowance would be released during the period incwvisuch an assessment is made. There have beerateoial changes to our fore
operations since December 31, 2012 and, accordimglymaintain our existing valuation allowance orefgn Deferred Income Tax Asset:
such jurisdictions at December 31, 2013.
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Income Tax Carryforwards
As of December 31, 2013 , we had the following meaax carryforwards (in millions):

Amount Expires in

Net operating loss carryforwards:

U.S. Federal $ 64.4 2029 - 2031

U.S. State 98.: 2014 - 2031

Germany 112 Indefinite

Switzerland 20.4 2014 - 2020

China 3.8 2014 - 2016

Italy 2.€ 2014 - 2017
Income tax credit carryforwards:

U.S. Federal 2.8 2018 - 2033

U.S. State 0.4 2019 - 2022

The timing and manner in which we are permitteditibze our net operating loss carryforwards maylibdted by Internal Revenue Cc
Section 382Limitation on Net Operating Loss Carry-forwards and Certain Built-in-Losses Following Ownership Change .

Unrecognized Tax Benefits
Following is a reconciliation of gross unrecognitad benefits from uncertain tax positions, exahgdihe impact of penalties and interest (in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Unrecognized tax benefits, beginning of year $ 2530 % 4,37¢  $ 3,34:
Additions for tax positions taken in prior years 16€ — 1,015
Reductions for tax positions taken in prior years (472 (972 —
Additions for tax positions related to the currgaar 54 — 73
Lapses of statutes of limitations (319 (874 (56)
Unrecognized tax benefits, end of year $ 1,96¢ $ 253C $ 4,37¢

Of the $2.0 million of gross unrecognized tax béedfom uncertain tax positions outstanding aPetember 31, 2013 , $1.6 milliamould
affect our effective tax rate if recognized.

We recognize tax-related interest and penaltiess @smponent of income tax expense. We had $1.6mdLimulative liability for interest ar
penalties related to uncertain tax positions fadhh@ars 2013 and 2012.

Our U.S. federal income tax returns for 2009 thio@§13 are open to review by the U.S. Internal RageService. Our state income tax ret
for 2006 through 2013 are open to review, dependimghe respective statute of limitation in eactestin addition, we file income tax retu
in several non-U.S. jurisdictions with varying stats of limitation.

As of December 31, 2013 , we believe it is reashnbkely that, within the next 12 months, $0.1 haoih of previously unrecognized t
benefits related to certain U.S. and non-U.S.dilositions will be recognized as statutes of ktidin expire.

(12) STOCK-BASED PLANS AND STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan

Our 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “2005 Planthich is administered by the Compensation Committeéhe Board of Director
authorizes us to grant various types of stbaked awards including: stock options, stock ajgiiea rights, restricted stock, restricted st
units ("RSUs") and performance stock units ("PSUStpck options granted under the 2005 Plan slodlhave an exercise price less thar
fair market value of our common stock on the ddt¢éhe grant. The exercise price of a stock optiorstock appreciation right may not
reduced without shareholder approval. Stock optgereerally vest over periods of

46




three or four years of continuous service, comnmrencin the date of grant. Stock options granted utitke 2005 Plan have a severeal
contractual term. Stock options granted under teeqaling plan expire after ten years.

Upon adoption, there were approximately 4.0 millgirares available for issuance under the 2005 Hla@.number of shares available
issuance is increased by any shares of common sibih were previously reserved for issuance umderpreceding stock option plan, i
were not subject to grant on June 6, 2005, or aghioh the stockased compensation award is forfeited on or atiee &, 2005. The numt
of shares available for issuance is reduced bywi) shares for each share delivered in settlement pfstotk appreciation rights, for e:
share of restricted stock, and for each stock emgerformance unit award, and (ii) osieare for each share delivered in settlement ¢dek
option award. In no event shall more than 1.0 omnllaggregate shares of common stock subject to stptitkng, stock appreciation rigr
restricted stock or performance stock unit awaelgianted to any one participant in any one yedeuthe 2005 Plan. At December 31, 2!
we had 3.8 million shares available for future gramder our 2005 Plan and we had 5.1 millitares of our common stock reserved for fu
issuance pursuant to the 2005 Plan and our preypians

Stock Option Activity
Stock option activity was as follows (shares inusands):

Weighted-

Average

Options Exercise

Outstanding Price

Outstanding at December 31, 2012 1,18 % 6.92
Granted 79 6.4¢
Forfeited, canceled or expired (160 10.7C
Exercised (110 3.1z
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 99¢ 6.7¢

Certain information regarding options outstandin®ecember 31, 2013 was as follows:

Options
Vested and
Options Options Expected to
Outstanding Exercisable Vest
Number (in thousands) 99z 698 991
Weighted-average exercise price $ 672 $ 8.0 $ 6.7¢
Aggregate intrinsic value (in millions) $ 38 $ 24 % 3.8
Weighted average remaining contractual term (ing)ea 3.t 2.4 3.t
RSU Activity
Following is a summary of RSU activity (shareshinusands):
Weighted-
Average
RSUs Grant Date Fair
Outstanding Value per Share
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 17¢ $ 2.6C
Granted 34 6.62
Forfeited, canceled or expired () —
Vested (72) 2.60
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 13¢ 358
PSU Activity

In April 2010, we granted PSU awards covering altof 146,000shares of our common stock to key members of oacutive team. Tt
PSUs were subject to both time-based vesting (obiné-&nnually over three yeaysand achievement of a stock price target of twes th
grant date price. If, over the thrgear period, the stock price did not close at avvabtwo times the grant date price over any 20Q
consecutive days, the entire award would have bmégited. Compensation expense for PSUs is reeeghover the estimated requisite ser
period based on the number of PSUs ultimately expeio vest. These awards vested in full overtiheetyear vesting period.
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In February and August 2012, we granted PSU awardsrtain executive officers covering a total @f@0shares of our common stock. -
PSUs vest based on achievement of certain operatgogne and return on asset goals established tbregyear performance period. T
number of PSUs that ultimately vest following carsibn of the performance period will be determibaeded on the level at which the finan
goals are achieved. The number of PSUs that vestarege from 60% of the PSUs if minimum thresha@ldsachieved to a maximum of 150%

In May 2013, we granted PSU awards to certain ofexcutive officers covering a total of 24,5€tares of our common stock. The PSUs
based on achievement of certain operating inconderaturn on asset goals established for a tieae-performance period. The numbe
shares vesting under the PSU awards following cmimh of the performance period will be determieded on the level at which
financial goals are achieved. The number of shaesting can range from 60% the PSU awards if minimum thresholds are achieet
maximum of 150% .

Following is a summary of PSU activity (shareshousands):

Weighted-
Average
PSUs Grant Date Fair
Outstanding Value per Share
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 13z % 2.5¢
Granted 25 6.62
Forfeited, canceled or expired (17 3.56
Vested (56) 2.32
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 84 376

Stock-Based Compensation
We receive income tax deductions as a result oéxeecise of certain stock options and vesting 8UR and PSUs. Stodkased compensati
expense, primarily included in general and admiaiste expense, was as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Stock options $ 337 % 358 % 26
Restricted stock units 54 18¢ 15C
Performance stock units 63 87 13C

$ 454 % 63C $ 30¢€

Certain other information regarding our stock-basethpensation was as follows (in thousands, expepshare amounts):

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Weighted average grant-date per share fair valstook options grantec$ 437 $ 1.8¢ $ 1.8¢
Total intrinsic value of stock options exercised 451 33 2
Fair value of RSUs vested 54E 40% —
Fair value of PSUs vested 38¢€ — —

As of December 31, 2013, unrecognized compensatipense for outstanding, but unvested stock-bas@dds was $0.5 million , which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted averagedof 1.5 years.
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Assumptions used in calculating the fair valuetotk-option grants were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Dividend yield —% —% —%
Risk-free interest rate 0.€% 0.€% 1.5%
Expected life (years) 4.7t 4.7t 4.7t
Expected volatility 89% 92% 92%

Expected dividend yield is based on our current expectation that no divddeayments will be made in future periods.

Risk-free interest rate is the U.S. Treasury zesupon rate, as of the grant date, for issues bawiterm approximately equal to the expe
life of the stock option.

Expected life is the period of time over which stock options aspected to remain outstanding. We calculate erpetd#rm based on t
average of the sum of the vesting periods anduthedntractual term.

Expected volatility is the percentage amount by which the price ofammmon stock is expected to fluctuate annually rduthe estimate
expected life for stock options. Expected priceatitity is calculated using historical daily clogiprices over a period matching the weightec
average expected life, as management believeschactyes are the best indicator of future volatility

We estimate future forfeitures, at the time of gramd in subsequent periods, based on historicabter rates, previous forfeiture experie
and changes in the business or key personnel thaldveuggest future forfeitures may differ fromthigcal data. We recognize compensa
expense for only those stock options and othekdbased awards that are expected to vest. We reé¢vadgtimated forfeitures each que

and, if applicable, recognize a cumulative effefjuatment in the period of the change if the redigstimate of the impact of forfeitures difl
significantly from the previous estimate.

(13) INCOME PER SHARE

The weighted average numbers of shares outstandedjto compute income per share amounts werdlas$qin thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Shares used for basic per share calculations 31,07: 30,85 30,74¢
Dilutive effect of outstanding options, PSUs and RS 38t 12: 3C
Shares used for diluted per share calculations 31,45 30,97+ 30,77¢

The weighted average numbers of shares outstafidted in the table below were amfilutive and excluded from the computation of Déic
Income Per Share, primarily because the averagketprice did not exceed the exercise price. Tsbsees may be dilutive potential comr
shares in the future (in thousands):

As of December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Stock options 304 1,07z 1,11¢
PSUs 12 26 89
RSUs — — 217

(14) SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

We have two reportable segment®irect and Retail. Contribution is the measure wffip or loss, defined as net sales less produstscani
directly attributable expenses. Directly attribuéabxpenses include Selling and Marketing experGereral and Administrative expenses,
Research and Development expenses that are diretdlgd to segment operations. Segment assethame directly assigned to an opera
segment's operations, primarily Accounts Receiydhleentories and Intangible Assets. Unallocatesssprimarily include shared informat
technology infrastructure, distribution centersypooate headquarters, Prepaids and Other Curresgté\sDeferred Income Tax Assets
Other Assets. Capital expenditures directly attdbie to the Direct and Retail segments were muiificant in any period.
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Following is summary information by reportable segm(in thousands):

Net Sales:
Direct
Retall
Unallocated royalty income
Consolidated Net Sales
Contribution:
Direct
Retail
Unallocated royalty income
Consolidated contribution

Reconciliation of consolidated contribution to incone from

continuing operations:
Consolidated contribution
Amounts not directly related to segments:
Operating expenses
Other income (expense), net
Income tax benefit (expense)

Income from continuing operations

Depreciation and amortization expense:
Direct
Retalil
Unallocated corporate

Total depreciation and amortization expense

Assets:
Direct
Retalil
Unallocated corporate

Total assets

Net sales by geographic area were as follc

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
uU.s. $181,38: $167,50¢ $163,82¢
Canada 34,16¢ 24,97 15,83¢
All other 3,25¢ 1,44t 75C

$ 218,800 $ 193,92¢ $180,41:

There are no material long-lived assets held oetsfdhe U.S.

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
$136,66. $124,97¢ $107,06:
76,77 63,89 68,59
5,36¢ 5,057 4,76(
$218,80: $193,92( $180,41:
$ 14,12¢ $ 1247¢ $ 2,95
11,43: 7,85¢ 9,48¢
5,36¢ 5,057 4,76(

$ 3092: $ 2539 $ 17,20:
$ 3092: $ 2539 $ 17,20:
(15,199  (14,80) (13,609
31E (174) (412)
32,08t 22€ (686)
$ 48,12 $ 10,64: $ 2,501
$ 195 $ 2,366 $ 2,74
642 82t 844

74¢€ 78 22¢

$ 334, $ 326¢ $ 3,81F

December 31,

2013 2012

$ 21,24¢ $ 22,34¢
32,028 27,84
90,29t 44,11¢

$143,56° $ 94,31
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(15) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases

We lease property and equipment under cancelable operating leases which, in the aggregatend through 2019. Many of these le
contain renewal options and provide for rent esitala and payment of real estate taxes, maintenamsarance and certain other opere
expenses of the properties. Rent expense undepedating leases was as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
Rentexpense $ 347: $ 3,21¢ $ 3,252

As of December 31, 2013, future minimum lease paysunder noancelable operating leases, reduced for sublaasene, were as follov
(in thousands):

2014% 3,34:

2015 3,251

2016 3,19¢

2017 2,16(

2018 99¢
Thereafter 664
$ 13,61¢

Guarantees, Commitments and Off-Balance Sheet Agaments
As of December 31, 2013 , we had approximately $dilBon in standby letters of credit with certain vendorshvexpiration dates throu
2014.

We have long lead times for inventory purchases thatefore, must secure factory capacity fromvamdors in advance. As Bfecember 3.
2013, we had approximately $8.8 million in non-@glable markebased purchase obligations, primarily for inventouychases expected to
received within the next twelve months. Purchadiations can vary from quarter-tpsarter and versus the same period in prior yesesal:
number of factors, including the amount of produtttat are shipped directly to Retail customer wauskes versus through Naut
warehouses.

In the ordinary course of business, we enter igi@ements that require us to indemnify countergsudigainst thirgharty claims. These m
include: agreements with vendors and supplierseumdich we may indemnify them against claims agsfrom use of their products
services; agreements with customers, under whictmaxe indemnify them against claims arising fromithese or sale of our products; r
estate and equipment leases, under which we mayninidly lessors against thiqghrty claims relating to the use of their propegagreemen
with licensees or licensors, under which we mayemdify the licensee or licensor against claimsirsgisrom their use of our intellectt
property or our use of their intellectual propedpnd agreements with parties to debt arrangememtier which we may indemnify them aga
claims relating to their participation in the transons.

The nature and terms of these indemnification albligis vary from contract to contract, and gengrallmaximum obligation is not sta
within the agreements. We hold insurance polichest mitigate potential losses arising from certgipes of indemnification obligatior
Management does not deem these obligations tognéfisant to our financial position, results of eatons or cash flows and, therefore
related liabilities were recorded as of December2813 .

Legal Matters
From time to time, we may be involved in variouairtls, lawsuits and other proceedings. These leghtax proceedings involve uncertaint
to the eventual outcomes and losses which maydlized when one or more future events occur ortdadccur.

Litigation and jury verdicts are, to some degrederently unpredictable, and although we have oeted that a loss is not probable
connection with any current legal proceeding, itéiasonably possible that a loss may be incurrembimection with proceedings to which
are a party. Assessment of whether incurrencelogsis probable, or a reasonable possibility,annection with a particular proceeding,
estimation of the loss, or a range of loss, inveleemplex judgments and numerous uncertaintiesalyment is unable to estimate a rang
reasonably possible losses related to litigatioitsirearly stages, especially when the damageshsaug indeterminate, or the legal and fac
basis for the relevant claims have not been deeeloyth specificity, as such zero liability is reded as of December 31, 2013.
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We regularly monitor our estimated exposure toahmmntingencies and, as additional information beknown, may change our estim
accordingly. We evaluate, on a quarterly basisgligpments in legal proceedings, investigationslaints that could affect the amount of |
accrual, as well as any developments that wouldemekoss probable or reasonably possible, and whelle amount of a probable
reasonably possible loss is estimable. Among dtmeors, we evaluate the advice of internal anéree counsel, the outcomes from sirn
litigation, current status of the lawsuits (inclogisettlement initiatives), legislative developnseand other factors. Due to the nume
variables associated with these judgments and asgums, both the precision and reliability of thesuwlting estimates of the related
contingencies are subject to substantial unceraint

(16) SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (unaudited)

The following table summarizes our unaudited quirtiénancial data for 2013 and 2012 (in thousared&ept per share amounts):

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31 Total

2013
Net sales $ 5921+ $ 36,24. $ 46,25 $ 77,090 $ 218,80
Gross profit 30,69 17,32¢ 21,77 36,677 106,47
Operating income (loss) 5,99/ (1,729 1,33¢ 10,11¢ 15,72«
Income from continuing operations 5,52¢ 32,66¢ 1,50( 8,43 48,124
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (365) 19t (116 11€ (170
Net income? 5,15¢ 32,86! 1,38¢ 8,54¢ 47,95¢
Net income per share:

Basic $ 017 $ 106 $ 0.0¢ $ 027 $ 1.54

Diluted 0.17 1.0t 0.04 0.27 1.52
2012
Net sales $ 5126: $ 3958 $ 38,05: $ 6502¢ $ 193,92
Gross profit 23,90¢ 17,16¢ 18,54: 31,42: 91,03%
Operating income (loss) 2,82¢ (599) 69¢ 7,66( 10,58¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations 2,647 (48€) 1,21¢ 7,26¢ 10,64:
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (12%) 322 (265) 6,30¢ 6,241
Net income (loss¥ 2,522 (164) 951 13,57« 16,88
Net income (loss) per share:

Basic $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0y $ 0.0z $ 044 $ 0.5t

Diluted 0.0¢ (0.01) 0.0z 0.44 0.5t

(1) Net income in the quarter ended June 30, 20dladed a $35.8 million credit related to the reetpf our deferred tax asset valuation allowance.

(2) Net income in the quarter ended December 312 2@cluded $6.2 million currency translation adijasnt gain related to the liquidation of European
subsidiaries.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountémon Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedur

As of December 31, 201,3ve conducted an evaluation under the supervisimhwith the participation of our management, idilg our Chie
Executive Officer and Acting Principal Financial fioér, of the effectiveness of the design and oj@maof our disclosure controls a
procedures. The term “disclosure controls and pmhos,” as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢) under the Securities and Exchange
of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Actijeans controls and other procedures of a compatyath designed to ensure that information req
to be disclosed by the company in the reportdas for submits under the Exchange Act is recorpeatessed, summarized and reported, w
the time periods specified in the SEC's rules amch§. Disclosure controls and procedures includgout limitation, controls and procedu
designed to ensure that information required taliselosed by a company in the reports that it fdesubmits under the Exchange Ac
accumulated and communicated to the company's reared, including its principal executive and prpadi financial officers, or persa
performing similar functions, as appropriate, ttowl timely decisions regarding required disclosuBased on this evaluation, our Ci
Executive Officer and Acting Principal Financialfioér concluded as of December 31, 2@t48t our disclosure controls and procedures
effective.

Management's Report On Internal Control Over Finaiat Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financigharing as such term is defined
Rule 13a15(f) under the Exchange Act. This rule definesiinél control over financial reporting as a procdssigned by, or under 1
supervision of, our Principal Executive Officer aRdncipal Financial Officer, to provide reasonablgsurance regarding the reliability
financial reporting and the preparation of finahai@tements for external purposes in accordante WiS. GAAP. Our internal control o\
financial reporting includes those policies andcedures that:

» Pertain to the maintenance of records that, inom@se detail, accurately and fairly reflect thensactions and dispositions of
assets;

* Provide reasonable assurance that transactionseeoeded as necessary to permit preparation ohdiah statements in accorda
with U.S. GAAP, and that receipts and expenditues being made only in accordance with authorinatiof our management ¢
directors; and

» Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, wsalisposition of our assets t
could have a material effect on the financial stegmts.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @etamisstatements. In addition, projection
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditior
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

Management's Assessme

Our management, including our Chief Executive @iffiand Acting Principal Financial Officer, evaluatthe effectiveness of our inter
control over financial reporting based on the cidt@stablished ihnternal Control - Integrated Framework (1992), issued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commissigased on this evaluation, management concludatl dbr internal control ov
financial reporting was effective as of DecemberZ113 .

Our independent registered public accounting fias ssued an attestation report on the effectigené®ur internal control over financ
reporting as of December 31, 2013, which is inetlterein.

Changes In Internal Control Over Financial Reportim

There were no changes in our internal control divemcial reporting that occurred during the theswl twelve months endddecember 3:
2013 that have materially affected, or are readgriddely to materially affect, our internal controver financial reporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Nautilus, Inc.
Vancouver, Washington

We have audited the internal control over finangplorting of Nautilus, Inc. and subsidiaries (tB@empany”) as of December 31, 201Base
on criteria established imternal Control-Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrte Treadwa
Commission. The Company's management is resporfeibiaintaining effective internal control ovendincial reporting and for its assessr
of the effectiveness of internal control over fin@h reporting, included in the accompanyingdnagement's Report On Internal Control (
Financial Reporting.” Our responsibility is to e&ps an opinion on the Company's internal contref éimancial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightd&nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordgx@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiafuthe design and operating effectiveness ofriratiecontrol based on the assessed risk
performing such other procedures as we considezeessary in the circumstances. We believe thahwdit provides a reasonable basis fol
opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtiis a process designed by, or under the supenvisfi the company's principal execu
and principal financial officers, or persons pemiorg similar functions, and effected by the compsiioard of directors, management,
other personnel to provide reasonable assuranegdieg the reliability of financial reporting anket preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles. A company's internaitoa over financial reporting includ
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaihéaraintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypr@jide reasonable assurance that transactioneereded as necessary to permit prepar
of financial statements in accordance with gengi@dcepted accounting principles, and that receiptsexpenditures of the company are t
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngan@ent and directors of the company; and (3) pevi&hsonable assurance regar
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asigion, use, or disposition of the company's as#leat could have a material effect on
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal tcohover financial reporting, including the posstip of collusion or improper managem
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of ¢
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltominover financial reporting to future periods abject to the risk that the controls r
become inadequate because of changes in conditiotigt the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of December 31, 2013
based on the criteria establishednternal Control-Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadrtie
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolids
financial statements as of and for the year endecebber 31, 2013 of the Company, and our repoeddaéebruary 27, 2014expressed :
unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Portland, Oregon
February 27, 2014
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.
PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

The information required by this item will be setth under the captiorSlection of Directors, Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance, Executive Officers, Information Concerning the Board of Directors andCode of Ethics in our Proxy Statement for our 2014 Anr
Meeting of Shareholders to be filed with the SECApyil 30, 2014 (“Proxy Statement”)f the Proxy Statement is not filed with the SEC
April 30, 2014, such information will be included an amendment to this Annual Report on Form 1@ead by April 30, 2014.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be serth under the captionBxecutive Compensation and Director Compensation in our Prox
Statement for our 2014 Annual Meeting of Sharelrslde be filed with the SEC by April 30, 2014 (“RyoStatement”)If the Proxy Stateme
is not filed with the SEC by April 30, 2014, suctfdrmation will be included in an amendment to tAisnual Report on Form 1R-filed by
April 30, 2014.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

Equity Compensation Plan Informatiol
The following table provides information about @guity compensation plans as of December 31, 2€1i&¢s in thousands):

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under

Number of securities Weighted average equity compensation
to be issued upon exercise exercise price of plans (excluding
of outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected in
warrants and rights warrants and rights column (a))
Plan Category (@) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by security drsld 99:¢ $ 6.7% 3,831
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders — — —
Total 99¢ 6.7¢ 3,837

For further information regarding our equity compation plans, refer to Note 12, Stockholders' Brtit our consolidated financial statem
in Part Il, Item 8 of this report.

Beneficial Ownershig

The information required by this item is includeader the captiorsecurity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management in oul
Proxy Statement for our 2014 Annual Meeting of hatders to be filed with the SEC by April 30, 20tRroxy Statement”)If the Proxy
Statement is not filed with the SEC by April 30,120 such information will be included in an amendbi® this Annual Report on Form XO-
filed by April 30, 2014.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

The information required by this item is includender the captiomnformation Concerning the Board of Directorsin our Proxy Statement f
our 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filgth the SEC by April 30, 2014 (“Proxy Statementf)the Proxy Statement is not fil
with the SEC by April 30, 2014, such informationliviie included in an amendment to this Annual Repor Form 10K filed by April 30,
2014.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
The information required by this item is includender the captiorRatification of Appointment of Registered Independent Public Accounting
Firm for 2014 in our Proxy Statement for our 2014 Ann ual MeetafgShareholders to be filed with the SEC by AR, 2014 (Proxy

Statement”) If the Proxy Statement is not filed with the SEC April 30, 2014, such information will be includéd an amendment to tt
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed by April 30, 2014.

55




PART IV
Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements and Schedules
The Consolidated Financial Statements, togethdr thig report thereon of Deloitte & Touche LLP, ex@uded on the pages indicated below:

Page
Report of Independent Public Accounting Firm 28
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,01 2012 29
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeaded December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 30

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incominéoyears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 31
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equitthioyears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 32
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yaaied December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 33
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 34

Financial statement schedules have been omittealibedhey are not applicable or the required inftion is shown in the financial statements
or notes thereto.

Exhibits
The following exhibits are filed herewith and thit is intended to constitute the exhibit index.

Exhibit No. Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatidncorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Schedldd, as filed with th
Commission on April 22, 2008.

3.5 Amended and Restated Bylaws - Incorporated by eafar to Exhibit 3.1 of our Current Report on Fori,&s filed with the
Commission on April 5, 2005.

3.6 Amendment to Amended and Restated Bylaws of thep@om-Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of our@ant Repor
on Form 8-K, as filed with the Commission on Jag&ir, 2007.

10.1* Company Stock Option Plan, as amended - Incorpdiagereference to Exhibit 10.1 to our RegistratBiatement on Form S-
1, as filed with the Commission on March 3, 1999.

10.2* Amendment to Company Stock Option Plan - Incorpatdtty reference to Exhibit 10 to our Quarterly Répa Form 109 for
the three months ended June 30, 2000, as filedthétlCommission on August 10, 2000.

10.3* Company 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan - Incorpatdig reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Current Rémor Form 8K, as
filed with the Commission on June 10, 2005.

10.4* First Amendment to Company 2005 Long-Term IncentNan -Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to owa@erly
Report on Form 10-Q for the three months endedeBaptr 30, 2006, as filed with the Commission on étoler 9, 2006.

10.5* Form of Employee Incentive Stock Option Agreememtiar the Company Stock Option Plameorporated by reference
Exhibit 10.3 to our Annual Report on Form KOfor the year ended December 31, 2004, as fileth whie Commission ¢
March 16, 2005.

10.6* Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement undher Company Stock Option Plarincorporated by reference to Exhi
10.4 to our Annual Report on Form KOfor the year ended December 31, 2004, as filgtl thie Commission on March 1
2005.

10.7* Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement - Ipaoated by reference to Exhibit 10 of our Curreap&t on Form 8¢, as

filed with the Commission on July 29, 2005.

10.8* Form of Non-Employee Director Nonstatutory Stockti@p Agreement -Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 of
Current Report on Form 8-K, as filed with the Corssion on August 19, 2005.



10.9* Form of Performance Unit Agreement - Incorporatgddierence to Exhibit 10.3 to our Quarterly RemmrtForm 10Q for the
three months ended June 30, 2006, as filed witlctdramission on August 9, 2006.
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Exhibit No. Description

10.10* Summary of Performance Unit Award - Incorporatedddgrence to Exhibit 10.1 to our Quarterly RemortForm 10 for the
three months ended September 30, 2006, as filddthét Commission on November 9, 2006.

10.11 Trademark License Agreement, dated September 201,2By and between Pacific Direct, LLC and Nautillisc. -
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of our @erdy Report on Form 1@ for the three months ended September 30, :
as filed with the Commission on November 14, 2001.

10.12 License Agreement, dated April 26, 1999, as amendeiiveen Nautillus, Inc. and Gary D. Piagétcorporated by referen
to Exhibit 10.10 to our Annual Report on Form K@er the year ended December 31, 2003, as filgtl thie Commission ¢
March 15, 2004.

10.13 Supply Agreement dated as of May 2, 2008 by andngmautilus, Inc., Land America Health and Fitn€s, Ltd. anc
Treuriver Investments Co. Limited - Incorporatedrbyjerence to Exhibit 10.4 of our Form @@for the three months end
March 31, 2008 as filed with the Commission on Ma&y 2008. [Confidential treatment has been gramigld respect to
portion of this Exhibit]

10.14 Settlement Agreement dated as of May 5, 2008 by andng Nautilus, Inc. Land America Health and BEm€o., Ltd.
Treuriver Investments Co. Limited, Michael C. Bruaed Yang Lin Qing dncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of
Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 280fed with the Commission on May 12, 2008.

10.15 Schwinn Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of Demrent2009 between Nautilus, Inc. and Fit Dragderhmational, Inc. -
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 of oorrir 10K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 lasl fivith the
Commission on March 8, 2010.

10.16 License Agreement dated as of December 29, 2008eket Nautilus, Inc. and Fit Dragon Internationat. |- Incorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.24 of our Form KOfor the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 ledl fivith the Commission ¢
March 8, 2010.

10.17 Stairmaster Asset Purchase Agreement dated asogiilr 5, 2009 between Nautilus, Inc. and Fit Dndgternational, Inc. -
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 of oorrk 10K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 led fivith the
Commission on March 8, 2010.

10.18 Technology Transfer and License Agreement datecdbfa®ecember 29, 2009 between Nautilus, Inc. and Dxé&gor
International, Inc. - Incorporated by referencdesdnibit 10.26 of our Form 18- for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2
as filed with the Commission on March 8, 2010.

10.19 Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of FebruaryOl®, Retween Nautilus, Inc. and Med-Fit Systems, iincorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.27 of our Form KOfor the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 lesl fivith the Commission ¢
March 8, 2010.

10.20 Commercial License Agreement dated as of Febru@r2a10 between Nautilus, Inc. and Med-Fit Systdms, - Incorporatet
by reference to Exhibit 10.28 of our Form KCor the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 led fivith the Commission ¢
March 8, 2010.

10.21 Lease Agreement dated as of February 19, 2010 batNautilus, Inc. and Med-Fit Systems, Inéneorporated by referen
to Exhibit 10.29 of our Form 1B-for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009led fivith the Commission on March 8, 20

10.22 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated MdrcB®L2 between Nautilus, Inc. and Bank of the Wéstorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Form 8-K dated 84880, 2012 as filed with the Commission on Apri812.

10.23 Security Agreement dated as of March 8, 2010 betwéautilus, Inc. and Bank of the Westncorporated by reference
Exhibit 10.31 of our Form 10-K for the fiscal yemmded December 31, 2009 as filed with the ComnrissioMarch 8, 2010.

10.24 Private Label Consumer Credit Card Program Agreé¢mated June 15, 2010, by and between Nautilgs,dnd GE Mone
Bank - Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.Joof Form 10Q for the three months ended June 30, 2010 aswilddthe
Commission on August 16, 2010. [Confidential treatirhas been granted with respect to a portiohisfExhibit]

1N 28 HFI Prard Marrhant Anrcamant datad Tiina 14 2(#drtive ac nf Tiina 11 2010 hv and hatanean Nimitlhe and Na_AL



Med, Inc. - Incorporated by reference to Exhibit216f our Form 109 for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as\iitt
the Commission on August 16, 2010. [Confidentiaatment has been granted with respect to a patitris Exhibit]
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29*

10.30*

10.31

10.32*

10.33*

10.34*

10.35*

10.36

10.37*

18

21

23

31.1

32.1

Addendum dated August 20, 2010 to Supply Agreendabéd May 2, 2008 between Nautilus, Inc., Treuriverestment
LIMITED, and Land America Health and Fithess Cad.Lt Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Borm 10€) for the
three months ended September 30, 2010 as filedthetiCommission on November 9, 2010.

First Amendment dated November 6, 2010 to Privatkel Consumer Credit Card Program Agreement, dhiad 15, 201(
by and between the Company and GE Money Bank +procated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 of our FA®K for the fisca
year ended December 31, 2012 as filed with the Cissiom on March 7, 2013.

Merchant Agreement dated December 15, 2010, bettiee@ompany and Hy Cite Corporatiomeorporated by reference
Exhibit 10.28 of our Form 18- for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012led fvith the Commission on March 7, 20
[Confidential treatment has been granted with ressfmea portion of this Exhibit]

Executive Employment Agreement, dated SeptembeP@Qd7, between the Company and Wayne M. Boliocorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.29 of our Form KOfor the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 lesl fivith the Commission ¢
March 7, 2013.

Offer Letter, dated April 9, 2009, between the Campand Ryan A. Neallncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 of
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 312285 filed with the Commission on March 7, 2013.

Office Lease Agreement dated as of July 25, 2031amd between Nautilus, Inc. and Columbia Tech €ent.L.C. -
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to ourr€nt Report on Form 8-K as filed with the Comnuasson July 29, 2011.

Executive Employment Agreement dated as of May2BQ,1, between Nautilus, Inc. and Bruce M. Cazendmeorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Form @for the three months ended June 30, 2011 as\iilddthe Commission on Augu
11, 2011.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement - Incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.2 of our Form QCfor the three montt
ended June 30, 2011 as filed with the CommissioAwgust 11, 2011.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement - Incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.3 of our Form QCfor the three montt
ended June 30, 2011 as filed with the CommissioAuggust 11, 2011.

Form of Non-Employee Director Nonstatutory Stocki@mp Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of oarri
10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 2018exWith the Commission on May 9, 2012.

Program Agreement between Nautilus, Inc. and Gsrigminkcard Services, Inclncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
our Form 10Q for the three months ended June 30, 2013 as Viied the Commission on August 8, 2013. [Confidal
Treatment has been granted with respect to portidtss exhibit]

Form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Ukitard Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of
Form 10-Q for the three months ended June 30, a6Xited with the Commission on August 8, 2013

Letter of Preferability regarding changeatounting principles.
Subsidiaries of the Company.
Consent of Independent Registered Publiofeting Firm.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and ActinGhief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 1B4(a) of the Securitie
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Actinghief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 1B&fb) of the Securities al
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18 U.S.Qio8ek350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906eoSdrbane®xley Act
of 2002.



101 The following financial statements from Nautiluecl's Annual Report on Form X0for the year ended December 31, 2(
formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reportinghgaage): (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Chaated Statemen
of Operations, (iii) Consolidated Statements of @ozhensive Income, (iv) Consolidated Statement€ash Flows and (»
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

*  Indicates management contract, compensatory agreéemarrangement, in which our directors or exiweudfficers may participat
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regitthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

NAUTILUS, INC.

Date: February 27, 2014 By: /sl Bruce M. Cazenave

Bruce M. Cazenave
C hief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer, Acting Principal Fineial Officer and
Acting Principal Accounting Officer)

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose individual signature appearsabbreby authorizes and appoints Bruce M. CazeaadeWayne M. Bolioand each ¢
them, with full power of substitution and resuhstin and full power to act without the other, @s thue and lawful attorney-ifact and age!
to act in his name, place and stead and to exétdate name and on behalf of each person, indiVigaad in each capacity stated below,
to file any and all amendments to this report, wéthexhibits thereto, and other documents in cotioa therewith, with the Securities ¢
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneyfadgt and agents, and each of them, full power arblosity to do and perform each ¢
every act and thing, ratifying and confirming &lat said attorneys-ifact and agents or any of them or their or his sutbe or substitutes m.
lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpithe following persons on behalf of
registrant and in the capacities indicated on Faiyrd7, 2014 .

Signature Title.
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer, Acting Principal Fineial Officer and
/sl Bruce M. Cazenave Acting Principal Accounting Officer)

Bruce M. Cazenave

* Chairman
M. Carl Johnson, IlI

* Director
Ronald P. Badie

* Director
Richard A. Horn

* Director
Anne G. Saunders

* Director
Marvin G. Siegert

*By: /sl Wayne M. Bolio February 27, 2014
Wayne M. Bolio
Attorney-In-Fact
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Exhibit 1€

February 27, 2014

Nautilus, Inc.
17750 S.E. 6th Way
Vancouver, Washington 98683

Dear Sirs/Madams:

We have audited the financial statements of Natiinc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2083842, and for each of the three yea
the period ended December 31, 2013, included irr younual Report on Form 1R-to the Securities and Exchange Commission ane
issued our report thereon dated February 27, 2@hith expresses an unqualified opinion. Note 1uohsfinancial statements contain

description of your adoption during the year enBedember 31, 2013 of the change in the date foatimal goodwill impairment test frc
October 31, to October 1. In our judgment, sucnghkas to an alternative accounting principle thatreferable under the circumstances.

Yours truly,

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Portland, Oregon



SUBSIDIARIES OF NAUTILUS, INC.

Nautilus, Inc., a Washington corporati

Nautilus International Holdings, S.A., a Swiss @aygiion
Nautilus International, S.A., a Swiss corporal

Nautilus International GmbH, a German corpora
Nautilus Fitness UK Ltd., a United Kingdom corpdoat
Nautilus Fitness Canada, Inc., a Canadian corpor
Nautilus (Shanghai) Fitness Co., Ltd., a Chinesparation

EXHIBIT 21



EXHIBIT 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegiion Statements No. 333-126054, 333-796433&346936 on Form 8-of our report
dated February 27, 2014relating to the consolidated financial statemeasftdautilus, Inc., and the effectiveness of NauglInc.'s intern:
control over financial reporting, appearing in tAisnual Report on Form 10-K of Nautilus, Inc. foetyear ended December 31, 2013 .

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP

Portland, Oregon
February 27, 2014



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Bruce M. Cazenave, certify that:

1.

4.

| have reviewed this annual report on FornK16F Nautilus, Inc.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,ader financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

| am responsible for establishing and maintgjrdisclosure controls and procedures (as defindtkchange Act Rules 13&(e) an
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial répm (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) 45d15(f)) for the registral
and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhteubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodimand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slalisire controls and procedures and presentedsimeéport our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contral$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetiis report based
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regisainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during tt
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the remists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahmeport) that has materia
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

| have disclosed, based on our most recent evatuati internal control over financial reporting, tfee registrant's auditors and
audit committee of the registrant's board of dwex{or persons performing the equivalent funciions

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controkmofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrant's ability to record, process, summasdre report financi
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a significalst in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

February 27, 2014 By: /s/ Bruce M. Cazenave

Date

Bruce M. Cazenave

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer, Acting Principal Finaial
Officer and Acting Principal Accounting Officer)



EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002
(Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, ChapteB 6f Title 18, United States Code)

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarba@etey Act of 2002 (Subsections (a) and (b) of Secti350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United St
Code), the undersigned officer of Nautilus, IncWashington corporation (the “Company”), does hgredrtify that:

To my knowledge, the Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfue year ended December 31, 2013 (the “Form 10eiKthe Company fully complit
with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d}te Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and informationtained in the Form 1R-fairly
presents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the Company.

February 27, 2014 By:
Date

/s/ Bruce M. Cazenave
Bruce M. Cazenave

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer, Acting Principal Finaial
Officer and Acting Principal Accounting Officer)




